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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURLES AND

Exhibit K-1

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GENERAL FUND FDOE Page |
For the Flscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 Fund 100
: REVENUES Aceount
Number
Federal Direct:
Federal Impact, Cusrent Operations 3121 497,223,73
Reserve Officers Training Corps (ROTC) 3191
Miscell Federal Direct 3199
Total Federal Direct 3100 497,223.73
Federal Through Staie and Local;
Medicaid 3202 1,216,521.08
National Forest Funds 32385
Federal Through Local 3280
Miscellaneous Federal Through State 3299 5.06
Total Federal Through State and Local 3200 1,216,526.11
| State:
Florida Education Finance Pregram (FEFF) 3310 109,439,222.00
Workforcs Development 3315 2,119,664.00
Workforce Development Capitalization Incentive Grant 3316
Workforce Education Performanes Incentive 3517 73,217.18
Adults with Disabilities 3318
CO&DS Withheld for Administrative Expenditure 3323 15,018.78
Diagnostic and Learning Resourges Canters 3335
Sales Tax Distribution (5. 212.20{6)(d)6.a, F.8.) 3341
State Forest Funds 3342
State License Tax 3343 29,835.10
District Discrelionary Loitery Funds 3344 438.844.00
Categorfcal Programs:
Class 8ize Reduction Operating Funds 3355 28,808,199.00
Florida School Recopnition Funds 3361 1,079,583.00
Voluntary Prekindergarten Program 3371 505,376.43
Preschool Projects 3372
Other State:
Reading Programs 3373
Full-Service Schoois Program 3378
State Theough Local 3380
Other Miscellaneous State Revenues 3399 1,624,938.01
Total Statc 3300 144,133,897.50
Local:
District School Taxes 3411 49.429,764.84
Tax Redemptions 3421
Payment in Liey of Taxes 22
Bucess Fees 3423
Tuition 3424
Rent 3425 25,600.00
Interest on Investments 3431 286,226.92
Gain on Sale of Investments 3432
Net Increass (Decrease} in Fair Value of Inveshiments 3433
Gifis, Grants and Bequests 3440 700.00
Siudent Fees:
Adult General Education Course Fees 3461 22,530.00
Postsec Caresr Cerl-Appl Tech Diploma Counrse Fees 3462 305,681.68
Continuing Workforee liducation Course Fees 3463 1,25%.15
Capital Improvement Fees 3464 19,105.10
¥ jary Lab Feos 3465
Lifelong Learning Fees 3466
GED® Testing Pees 3467
Financial Aid Fees 3408 38,210.22
Other Student Fees 3469 447,809.09
Other Fees:
Prescliool Program Fees 3471 5%,136.72
Prekindergarten Barly Infervention Fees M7
School-Age Child Care Fees 73 1,871,732.10
Other Schools, Courses and Classes Fees 479 4,985.00
Miscellaneous Local:
Bus Fees 3491
‘I'ransportation Services Rendered for Scheol Activitics 3492 239,462,531
Sale of Junk 3493 77,7871
Receipt of Federal Indivect Cost Rate 3494 $47,069.00
Qther Miscellancous Local Sources 3495 458,566.99
Impact Fees 3496
Refunds of Prior Year's Expenditures 3497 4,085.57
Collections for Lost, Damaged and Sold Textbooks 3498 24,448.67
Receipt of Food Scrvice Indirect Costs 3499 150,000.00
Total Loenl 3400 54,010,158.8¢
Total Revenues 3000 199,857,806.23
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND Exhibit K-1
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GENERAIL FUND (Continued) FDOE Page 3
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 Fund 100
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Account
and CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES Number
Loans 3720
Sale of Capital Assets 3730
Loss Recoveries 3740 ' 33,623.72
Transfers In:
From Debt Service Funds 3620
From Capital Projects Funds 3630 5,302,564.57
From Special Revenue Funds A 3640
From Permanent Funds 3660
From Internal Service Funds 3670
From Enterprise Funds 3690
Total Transfers In 3600 5,302,564.57
Transfers Out: (Function 9700)
To Debt Service Funds 920
To Capital Projects Funds 930
To Special Revenye Funds ' 940 (319,025.59)
To Permanent Funds 960
To Internal Service Funds 970 (3,000,000.00)
To Enterprise Funds ' 990
Total Transfers Out 9700 {3,319,025.59)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,017,162.70
Net Change In Fund Balance 5,185,081.55
Fund Balance, July 1, 2016 2800 22,961,634.50
Adjustments to Fund Balance 2891
Ending Fund Balance: _
Nonspendable Fund Balance 2710 129,381.28
Restricted Fund Balance 2720 6,373,446.54
Committed Fund Balance 2730 4,521,088.40
Assigned Fund Balance 2740 874,145.50
Unassigned Fund Balance 2750 16,248,654.33
Total Fund Balances, June 30, 2017 2700 28,146,716.05
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - SPECIAL REVENUE Exhibit K-2
FUNDS - FOOD SERVICES FDOE Page 4
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 Fund 410
REVENUES Account
Number
Federal Through State and Local:
School Lunch Reimbursement 3261 5,220,776.36 |
School Breakfast Reimbursement 3262 1,602,414.26
Afterschool Snack Reimbursement 3263 49,879.14
Child Care Food Program 3264
USDA-Donated Commodities 3265 693,927 .89
Cash in Lieu of Donated Foods 3266
Summer Food Service Program 3267 336,032.67
Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 3268
Other Food Services 3269 15,364.80
Federal Through Local 3280
Miscellaneous Federal Through State 3299
Total Federal Through State and Local 3200 7,918,395.12
State:
School Breakfast Supplement 3337 47,398.00
School Lunch Supplement 3338 61,795.00
State Through Local 3380
Other Miscellaneous State Revenues 3399
Total State 3300 109,193.00
Local:
Interest on Investments 3431 35,957.97
Gain on Sale of Investments 3432
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 3433
Gifts, Grants and Bequests 3440
Student Lunches 3451 1,713,674.74
Student Breakfasts 3452 571,224.91
Adult Breakfasts/Lunches 3453 168,229.25
Student and Aduli 4 la Carte Fees 3454 1,827,270.14
Student Snacks 3455
Other Food Sales 3456
Other Miscellaneous Local Sources 3495 148,390.61
Refunds of Prior Year's Expenditures 3497
Total Local 3400 4,464,747.62
Total Revenues 3000 12,492,335.74
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - SPECIAL REVENUE Exhibit K-2
FUNDS - FOOD SERVICES (Coutinued) FDOE Page 5
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 Fund 410
EXPENDITURES (Function 7600/9300) ;ﬁgg
Salaries 100 250.00
Employee Benefits 200 [,040.73
Purchased Services 300 11,126,629.44
Energy Services 400
Materials and Supplies 500 7.395.06
Capital Outlay 600 7.858.25
- |Other 700 150,392.03
Other Capital Outlay (Function 9300) 600 72,332.00
Total Expenditures 11,365,897.51
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 1,126,438.23
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
and CHANGES IN EUND BALANCES

Loans 3720
Sale of Capital Assets 3730
Loss Recoveries 3740
Transfers In:

From General Fund 3610 3,826,22

From Debt Service Funds 3620

From Capital Projects Funds 3630

Interfund 3650

From Permanent Funds 3660

From Internal Service Funds 3670

From Enterprise Funds 3690

Total Transters In 3600 3,826.22
Trangfers Out: (Function 9700)

To General Fund 910

To Dcbt Service Funds 920

To Capital Projects Funds 930

Interfund 950

To Permanent Funds 960

To Internal Service Funds 970

To Enterprise Funds 9%0

Total Transfers Out 9700 0.00
Total QOther Financing Sources (Uses) 3,826,22
Net Change in Fund Balance 1,130,264.45
Fund Balance, July 1, 2016 2800 3,388,817.66
Adjustiments to Fund Balance 2891
Fnding Fund Balance:

Nonspendable Fund Balancs 2710 189,204.38

Restricted Fund Balance 2720 4,320 877.73

Commitied Fund Balance 2730

Assigned Fund Balance 2740

Unassigned Fund Balance 2750

Tolal Fund Balances, June 30, 2017 2700 4,519,082.11
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - SPECIAL REVENUE Exhibit X-3
FUNDS - OTHER FEDERAL PROGRAMS FDOE Page 6
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 Fund 420
REVENUES ﬁi‘:ﬁ{)’;’:
Federal Direct:
Head Start 3130 2,315,685.84
‘Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 3170
Community Action Programs 3180
Reserve Officers Training Corps (ROTC} 3191 225,150.75
Pell Grants 3192 493,220.37
Miscellaneous Federal Direct 3199 7,031.57
Total Federal Direct 3100 3,041,088.53
Federal Through State and Local:
Career and Technical Education 3201 258,830.97
Medicaid 3202
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) 3230 5,551,522.51
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act:
Adult General Education 3221 269,826.06
English Literacy and Civics Education 3222
Adult Migrant Education 3223
Other WIOA Programs 3224
ESSA - Elementary and Secondary Fducation Act:
Elementary and Secondary Education Act - Title [ 3240 4,134,892.00
‘Teacher and Principal Training and Recruiting - Title II, Part A 3225 715,003.73
Math and Science Partnerships - Title 11, Part B 3226
Language Instruction - Title TTT 3241 28,670.13
Twenty-First Century Schools - Title IV 3242
Federal Through Local 3280 306,261.95
Emergency Immigrant Education Program 3203
Miscellaneous Federal Through State 3299 130,184.12
Total Federal Through State and Local 3200 11,395,191.47
State:
State Through Local 3380
Other Miscellaneous State Revenues 3399
Total State 3300 0.00
Local:
Inferest on Investmenis 3431
Gain on Sale of Investments 3432
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 3433
Gifts, Grants and Bequests 3440
Adult General Educaiion Course Fees 3461
Sale of Junk 3493
Other Miscellaneous Local Sources 3495
Refunds of Prior Year's Expenditurcs 3497
Total Local 3400 0.00
Total Revenues 3000 14,436,280.00
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DISTRICT ECHOOL BOARD GF 8ANTA ROSA COUNTY Exhibit K8

DOE Poje 26
SCHEDULE &
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANGIAL
AGSISTANCE PROGRAM EXPENDITURES
For the Flgoal Year Ended Juve 30, 2017
Catalog of Pags - Ameunt of Arnount
Fodaral TFhrough Expenditures Provided
Domestic Grantor i) To
Fedoral Grantor/Pass-Through Geantor/Program Tite Asslstance Mumber Bubreciplents.
Nurnber
United Btates Dapartment of Agriculiura;
Indirect:
Cifld Nutrition Clustar:
Florida Dapariment of Education:
Sohaol Breakfast Progrem 10.853 300 4,802,414.28 -
Nationat Schoot Lungh Program 10.555 2 6,27),655.60 -
Summaer Food Servica Program for Ghildren 10.552 322 229.458.65 -
Flotida Dapartment of Agricubiure and Gonsuraer Sarvices:
Natitnat School Luneh Program 10.55% (2) 300 784,671.00 -
Total Ghilld Natrition Gluster 7.887,108.63
Flarkda Dapartmant of Finanolal Services:
Sohools and Raads + Grants to Stakes 10.865 nane 508 .
Tolel Uniled Slates Department of Agriculbum 7.867.201.87 -
United Slates Departmont of Dafense:
Direct: !
Ak Forge Juplor Reaorve Officers Teaining Corgs 12 [ 56,700.30 -
Hirvy Junlor Reserva Offlcera Tralnlng Garpa 1z NiA 237.770.88 -
Tolal Unfited Blales Bapariment of Dafense 204,480,165 -
Unlige States Departmant of Labor:
Inlirecy:
Werlforca Evcerbya, ino.!
WA Youth Activiies 17.269 fone 2306,261.05 -
Total Unlted Slates Department of Labor 306,261.85 -
Unitod S4atos Department of Edunation;
Divact:
Sludent Financial Aselslance Clustar:
Fedgral o Srants. 84,007 RNiA £,703.00 .
Fetaral Work-Study Program 084,032 WA 6268.67 -
Federal Pall Grank Program 84,062 HiA 483.220.97 ¥
Total Btudenl Financlal Asslstance Cluster 499,451 94 -
Innpast Akd 84.041 NiA 497,223,713 -
Tutal Diract 996.876.07 -
Incirect.
Spooial Education Gluatar:
Flotida Daparirent of Edugation:
Speclal Educalion - Grants to Sfates ad.027 03 5,442.440.15 1,12667
Spacial Education - Peescliool Grants 84473 267 140,042.38 .
University of Gouth Florida
Speclal Education - Grants to Stales a4.027 nore - -
Total Speclal Education Cluster 6,552,462 6+ 1,12067
PFlerida Depariment of Eduction:
Adult Educalion - Baslc Granta t Statos. 84,002 191, 193 263,626.06 -
Titla | Grants to Local Educational Agencles 84,010 212, 228 4,114,992.00 43,755.92
Garger and Techrdcal Edunation - Bazh Grants to States 84.048 161 268,630.57 3
Education for Homelesa Children and Youth 24,109 127 124,184.43 -
English Language Avquisition Gramiz. B4.285 102 28,870.43 -
lmproving Teanher Quality Stato Grants 84.987 24 TIB00BTS =
Plorigta $%a%s University/Mills Gollage:
Resaarsh, b i hlo of Solencea 04,305 nong 350080 -
5.517,607.01 43,755.82
Total Indirest 11,068,968,52 44,682,589
Total Unlted States Department of Educaflon 12.080.665.19 4480269
United States Depactment of Heslth and Human Sorvioos;
Dirget;
Head Start Gluster:
Hoad Start §3.800 (3) nona 2,316,685.84 -
Tolal Unlted States Dopariment of Hoatth and Human Servioes 2,215.085.84 -
United States Deparirent of Homuotand Securlty:
Inglrect:
Florkda Deparimant of Gommunity Adfairs:
Distster Geants - Publla ially Declarsd ) 97.098 (4) none 2,504.30 -
Tolal United States Department of Homeland Securkty 2,582.30
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 22,852,876.11 44,852.59

MNobes: {1} Basle of Prasentation. The Schedube of Expendilures of Federal Awards represents amounts expagded from Federet Programs during the 2018-2017 fiscal year as dabaaminod
baeed on the modified auclual lmh or amwnling “Tha emounts reported oh the Schedule have been recantlied ta and are in malera sgreement with ameunts recortod 1 tha

Distiiet's hava been reporied.
12) Idoneesh Asklalancss

Foad Denstion - Represents the amount of danated Frod cecelved during | i ysar, arovalued at lalr vahm ag detonmwinad at Himo of donation.
{3 Head Start Inelude $1,314,910.50 for grant yaar ared $1,000,776.26 for yrant year

41 Rlapster Goants - Publio Asslataneg. The oniount dischsed a3 ependinges represonls Florda Sevara Stonm, Tomadoos, Straight-ne Winds, end Finoding recoveries for tha 2618~
2017 frgal year a5 follows: $2,683.30 for laigo projects for witleh tho Rsinet Jn requined 1o meka an aceounting of aligibla csole for each spprowed projed; $0.00 for amall piojects;
and $0.00 for tMawibla adriniairriive cosis.
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL
ASSISTANGE PROGRAM EXPENDITURES
For the Fiscai Year Endod Juns 30, 2017
Catalog of Pass - Amount of Amounl
Federal Theaugh Experdiiures Pravided
Cornastio Grartor [4}] To
Federal GrantedPassThreugh Grantor/Program Tile Agsistance Nuraber Subrecipients
Nurnber
Unitad States Bopartment of Agriculture;
Indirect:
Child Nutslion Clusler:
Florida Departinent of Education:
School Breakfast Pragram 10653 300 1,602,414.26 -
Mationel Schod Lunch Program 10,655 az1 5,270,855.50 -
‘Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.558 23 22945585 -
Flotkda Dapartmant of Agricuiiura and Consumer Sendces:
MNational Schoo! Lunch Progren 10,656 {2) 300 764,871.00 -
Total £hikl Hutriilen Cluster 7,867,186.61 -
Florlda Department of Financlal Servces:
Schools and Roads - Grants 1o Slates 10,685 nong 5.08 -
Total Unlted States Departmont of Agriculture 7.807.204.67 -
Unlted States Dopartment of Dofonse:
Diceat:
Alr Fore Junler Reserve Officers Tralning Corps i2 NiA 56,700.30 -
Mavy Junler Raserve Offieers Tralning Corps. 12 NiA 287,770.86 -
Tota| United Stales Depariment of Defense 204.480.18 -
Unlted States Dapartmerd of Labor:
Indirect:
. Wiorkforcs Escarcsa, Ino..
WIA Yauth Activitles 17,250 nong 208,261,85 -
Total Unlted States Dopartment of Labor 308,261.85 -
Uinitec States Departnsent of Education:
Direct;
Student Financial Assistance Cluster:
Faderal Supplemental Edusations Opportunity Grants 54007 NfA 5,703.00 -
Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 NiA 528.57 -
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 NiA 493,220.37 -
Total Student Financial Assistance Glusler 499,461.04 -
Impaat Ald 84.04% NiA 497,223,73 -
Total Direct DOB,B76.67 -
Indirest:
Speclal Education Cluster:
Florida Departmant of Education:
Speclal Education - Granls to States 84,027 263 5,412,440,15 132867
Speclal Education - Praschool Granls 84.173 287 140,042.3¢ -
Wnlvorsty of Sauth Florlda
Bpeclsl Education - Grants to States 84,027 none - -
Totnl Spnglal Edication Chister 5,662,482.81 1,126.67
Florkda Department of Educalian:
Aduit Education - Basic Graits to Stales 84,002 191, 183 09,026.06 -
Titls | Grants to Local Educetional Agancios 84,000 212, 228 4,114,962.00 43,756,802
Garesr end Tochhical Edugation - Basic Grants to Siates 84.048 25,820.97 -
Edueation for Homeless Childron and Youth 84.196 127 126,184,13 -
English Languags Acquisilion Grants 84.365 102 28,670.13 -
Improving Teacher Qualily State Granis 84367 229 715,002.73 -
Florida Stats University/Mills College:
Resoarsh, D and D) te of Ecucalion Salences 84,305 nena 3,080.89 -
6,81%,607.01 43.75692
Tolal [ndirect 14,069,089.52 44,802.50
Tatal Unitad Statos Dopartment of Edikation 12,066,665.1¢ 44,882,508
Unitad Statan Departront of Health and Human Services:
Direst:
Head Start Gluster:
Head Start B3.800 (3} nong 2.315586,89 -
Total United States Department of Health and Human Setvices. 2,315,885.81 -
United States Depariment of Homeland Socurity;
Tndlirect:
Florida Department of Community Afalrs:
Ditsester Grenls - Public Asslstance (Presidentially Declored Disasters) 97,026 (4} nens 2,583.30 -
Total United $tates Dapartment of Homeland Socurity 250330
Total Expenditures of Federal Avards § 22,852,878, 11 44,882.50

Mofos: (1} Basla of Presontalon. Tha Schoduls of Expordituras of Fedoral Awarde roprosents amoaunts expaieded fram Fadaral Pregrams during tho 2016-2017 fiscal year as
daterminad haesd on the modified aoarual basls of sccountng. The ameunts raprlod an e Schedul have been reconcled ko a1k are in maladal agraomenl with amounts

raceidad In e Disiricts Becounting recards from wiikoh the gonaral purpass financias slatsments hieve baan raportad.

(2) bloncash Agsletance:

Fozd Donaflen - Repratents Ihe amounl of donaind Food recelved during the fisaal yoar. Cominoritios are vakied al fair vaku us datainined at i ef donallon.
(31 4load Star) - Exponiliuros inchade §1,314,810.69 for grant pumboriprogram yoar 64CHATE&02 st $1,000,776.26 for grant numberdprogram Year (4GH4706/03,

-Pubi stancs, The amount disclosor a5 axparditures raprocatits Flarida Sovoro Stamm, Tornadoos, Stskght-llne Winds, and Fleading rosaverkas for tho 2016~
2017 flenel yaer as follw: $2.683.30 for largo projsots for which £o District s raquired o make s accounling of oliglblo oosts for aach appravad projost; $0.00 for suall grojoole;

and $0.00 for allovabli adminislialiv ocels.
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_ MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSTS |

"The management of the Santa Rosa County Disttict School Board has prepared the following discussion
and analysis to provide an overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2017. The information contained in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is intended to
highlight significant transactions, events, and conditions and should be considered in conjunction with

the District’s financial statements and notes to the financial statements found immediately following the
MD&A.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Key financial highlights for the 2016-17 fiscal year are as follows:

»  As of June 30, 2017, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceed the liabilities and deferred
inflows of resoutrces by $195,764,819.

» Net position increased by $7,276,604, which represents a 3.9 percent increase from the prior
fiscal year.

»  General revenues total $233,466,416, ot 93.2 percent of all revenues. Program specific revenues
in the form of chatges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and
contributions total $17,041,602, ot 6.8 petcent of all revenues.

» Expenses total $243,231,414. Only $17,041,602 of these expenses was offset by program specific
chatges, with the remainder paid from general revenues.

» At the end of the cutrent fiscal year, the fund balance of the General Fund totals $28,146,716,
which is $5,183,082 more than the 2015-2016 fiscal year balance. The Genetal Fund assigned
and unassigned fund balances totaled $17,122,800, or 8.6 petcent of total General Fund revenues.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

"The basic financial statements consist of thtee components: 1) government-wide financial statements; 2)
fund financial statements; and 3) notes to financial statemnents. This repott also includes supplementary

information intended to furnish additional details to support the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide both shott-term and long-term information about the
District’s overall financial condition in a tnanner similar to those of a ptivate-sector business. The
statements include 2 statement of net position and a statement of activities that are designed to ptovide
consolidated financial information about the governmental activities of the District presented on the
accrual basis of accounting. The statement of net position provides information about the District’s
financial position, its assets, liabilities, and defetred inflows/outflows of resources, using an economic
resources measurement focus. Assets plus deferted outflows of tesources, less liabilities and deferted
inflows of resoutces, equals net position, which is a measure of the District’s financial health. The
statement of activities presents information about the change in the District’s net position, the results of
opetations, duting the fiscal year. An increase or decrease in net position is an indication of whether the

District’s financial health is improving or deteriorating.
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The government-wide statements present the District’s activities in the following categoties:

» Govetnmental activides — This represents most of the District’s setvices, including its
educational programs: basic, vocational, adult, and exceptional education. Suppott functions
such as transportation and administtation ate also included. Local property taxzes and the State’s
education finance program provide most of the resources that support these activities.

» Component units — The District presents three separate legal entities in this repost. The Leatning
Academy, Inc., and Capstone Academy, LLC, charter schools, are legally separate organizations
and component units that are included in this report because they meet the critetia for inclusion
provided by generally accepted accounting principles. Financial information for these
component units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary
government.

The Santa Rosa School Board Leasing Corporation (Leasing Corporation), although also a legally
sepatate entity, was formed to facilitate financing for the acquisition of facilities and equipment
for the District. Due to the substantive economic relationship between the District and the
Leasing Cotpotation, the Leasing Cotporation has been included as an integral patrt of the
ptimary government.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements ate one of the components of the basic financial statements. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requitements and prudent fiscal management. Certain funds are
established by law while others are created by legal agreements, such as bond covenants. Fund financial
statements provide more detailed information zbout the District’s financial activities, focusing on its most
significant or “majot” funds rathet than fund types. This is in contrast to the entity-wide perspective
contained in the government-wide statements. All of the District’s funds may be classified within one of

the broad categories discussed below.

Governmental Trunds: Governmental funds ate used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal yeat. Such information may be useful in assessing a government’s neat-term financing
requitements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is natrower than that of the government-wide fnancial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readets may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of
revenues, expendiiures, and changes in fund balances provide a teconciliation to facilitate this compatison

between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The povernmental funds balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide detailed information about the District’s most sipnificant funds. The District’s major
funds are the General Fund, Capital Projects — Local Capital Improvement Fund, and Capital Projects —
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Other Fund. Data from the othet governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds. A budgetary compatison
schedule has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

Proprictary Funds: Proprietary funds may be established to account for activities in which a fee is

charged for services. Internal service funds are used to teport activities that provide goods and setvices
to support the District’s other progtams and functions through user chargers. The District uses an internal
setvice fund to account for the District’s self-insurance program. Since these services predominantly
benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, the internal service fund has been included

within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary funds are used to repdtt assets held in a trustee ot fiduciary capacity for the
benefit of external parties, such as student activity funds. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the
government-wide statements because the resources ate not available to support the District’s own
programs. In its fiduciary capacity, the District is tesponsible for ensuring that the assets reported in
these funds are used only for theit intended purposes. The District uses agency funds to account for
resources of the District’s pre-tax flexible benefits plan and the school internal funds which are used to
account for moneys collected at vatious schools in connection with school, student athletic, class, and

club activities.

Notes to Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents required
supplementary information concerning the Disttict’s net pension liability and its progress in funding its
obligation to provide other postemployment benefits to its employees.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted eatlier, net position over time may setve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial health.
The following is a summary of the District’s net position as of June 30, 2017, compared to net position
as of June 30, 2016:
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Net Position, End of Year
Governmenial Activities

6-30-17 6-30-16

Current and Other Assets ) 71,973,425 s 58,918,178
Capital Assats 265,441,271 267,599,563
Total Assets 337,414,696 326,517,741
Deferred Qutflows of Resources 47,425,382 19,925,371
Long-Term Liabilities 178,751,654 139,195,517
Other Liabilities 7,217,612 7,258,248
Total Liabilities 185,969,266 146,453,764
Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,105,993 11,501,133
Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital Assets 231,541,944 230,791,235

Restricted 36,270,684 27,656,055

Unrestricted (Deficit) (72,047,810} (69,959,074)
Total Net Position $ 195,764,819 S 188,488,215

The largest portion of the District’s net position s its investment in capital assets (e.g., land; buildings;
furniture, fixtures, and equipment), less any related debt still outstanding, ‘The District uses these capital
assets to provide services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending,
Although the investment in capital assets is teported net of related debt, the resources used to repay the
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

The testricted pottion of the District’s net position represents resousces that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The deficit untestticted net position is the result, in part, of accruing
long-term liabilities {e.g., debt, compensated absences payable, and net pension liability). The deficit
unrestricted net position increased by $2,088,735 from the 2015-2016 fiscal year, primarily as a result of
an increase of $13,683,407 in cash and cash equivalents, an increase of §27,582,240 in defetred outflows
of resources related to pensions, and a decrease of $8,395,140 in deferted inflows of resources related to

pensions which were offset by an increase of §41,721,629 in the net pension liability.
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The key elements of the changes in the District’s net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017,
June 30, 2016, ate as follows:

Operating Results for the Fiscal Year Ended

Governmeantal Activities

Ll L
6-320-17 6-30-16
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services 3 7,286,309 23 7,274,115
Operating Grants and Contributicns 8,027,588 7,801,072
Capital Grants and Contributions 1,727,705 1,808,485
General Revenues:
Property Taxes, Levled for Operational Purposes 49,429,765 52,747,090
Property Taxes, Levied for Capital Pro]ects 12,717,475 12,697,265
Local Sales Taxes 8,938,746 8,530,136
Grants and Contributicns Not Restricted
to Specific Programs 160,727,892 152,769,615
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 454,618 196,844
Misceallanesous 1,197,921 4,435,817
Total Revenues 250,508,018 248,260,038
Functions/Program Expenses:
Instruction 137,666,012 131,009,531
Pupll Personnel Services 8,125,403 8,014,744
Instructional Media Services 2,070,693 2,173,459
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6,383,929 6,192,182
Instructional Staff Training Services 3,428,480 3,318,970
Instruction Related Technaology 6,827,607 5,181,609
Board 742,393 537,596
General Administration 1,233,968 1,230,237
School Administration 14,615,556 13,794,921
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 630,512 400,282
Flscal Sarvices 1,144,575 1,221,291
Food Services 11,187,768 11,572,807
Central Services 2,448,357 2,133,639
Student Transportation Services 11,712,818 11,724,072
Operatlon of Plant 13,208,410 12,871,586
Malntenance of Plant 6,646,318 7,001,217
Administratlve Technol ogy Services 2,160,128 1,955,833
Community Services 2,528,227 2,315,845
Unallocated Interest on Long-Term Debt 1,756,490 1,417,321
Unallocated Depreciation Expense 8,713,770 8,106,681
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets - A7T7,222
Total Functions/Program Expensas 243,231,414 232,651,045
Change in Net Position 7,276,604 15,608,993
MNet Poasition - Beginning 188,488,215 172,879,222
Adjustment to Beginning Net Posltlon (1) - -
Net Position - Beginning, as restated 188,488,215 172,879,222
Net Pastion - Ending - s 195,764,819 = 188,488,215

{1)The adjustment to beginning nhet position was due tc the implemeaentation of Government
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, which was a change in accounting principle that
requires employers participating in cost-sharing multipie-emplover definad benefit pension plans
to report the emplovers' proportionate share of the net pension liability of the defined benefit
penslon plans.
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Grants and contributions not restticted to specific programs represent 64.2 percent of total governmental
revenues in the 2015-16 fiscal year and increased by §7,958,276.92 ot 5.2 percent from the 2015-2016
fiscal year, primarily due to an increase in Florida Education Finance Program (FEFP) funding and Class
Size Reduction. This funding increase is ptimarily due to additional student FIE. The FEFP formula
utilizes student enrollment data and is designed to maintain equity in funding across all Florida school
districts, taking into consideration the District’s funding ability based on the local property tax base.

Instruction expenses represent 56.6 percent of total governmental expenditures in the 2016-17 fiscal year.
Instruction expenses incteased by $6,656,481.06, or 5.1 percent, from the 2015-16 fiscal year, primarily

due to adjustments from other postemployment benefits and net pension expense.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

Govetnmental Funds

The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide infotmation on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resoutces. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing
requitements. Specifically, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resoutces available for discretionaty use as it represents the portion of fund balance that has not been
limited to a particular purpose by an external patty, the Disttict, or a group or individual delegated
authority by the Board to assign tesoutces for particular purposes.

The total fund balances of governmental funds increased by $9,930,422 during the fiscal year to
$58,598,792 at June 30, 2017. Approximately 38 percent of this amount is unassigned fund balance
($16,248,654), which is available for spending at the District’s discretion. The remainder of the fund
balance is nonspendable, restricted, committed, ot assigned to indicate that it is (1) not in spendable form
($318,586), (2) restricted fot particular putposes ($36,081,480), (3) committed for particular purposes
($5,075,927), ot (4) assigned for particulat purposes ($874,146).
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In the governmental funds, revenues by source for the 2016-17 fiscal year were as follows:

Revenues by Source

o Local

32 04% Y . Federal Direct o .
; B 1.41% ' Federal Through
' ; State and Local -

8.18%

_State
58.37%

The larpest revenue source is the State of Florida. Revenue from State sources for current operations are
primarily received through the FEFP funding formula, Class Size Reduction, Workforce Development,
and Discretionary Lottery funds. State revenues increased by $8,042,901, ot 5.8 petrcent, primarily due to
increasing FEFP funding,

Major Governmental [Funds

The General Fund is the District’s chief operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, the
unassigned fund balance is $16,248,654, while the total fund balance is $28,146,716. As a measure of the
General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare the assigned and unassigned fund balances to
General Fund total revenues. The total assigned and unassigned fund balance is 8.6 percent of the total

Genetal Fund tevenues, while total fund balance represents approximately 14.1 percent of total General
Fund revenues.

Total fund balance increased by $5,185,082 during the fiscal year. Key factots impacting the change in

fund balance are as follows:

> Increases in State revenues totaling §7,966,276.25, primarily due to an increase in the following
funding: FEFP, Class Size Reduction, Discretionary Lottety, and Workforce Development.

»  Decreases in local revenues totaling $5,215,861.97, primarily due to a decrease in local property
taxes and other miscellaneous local sources. The 15-16 year included revenue received from
lawsuits.

» Increases in Restricted and State Categorical projects of $3,605,562.09.
The Capital Projects — Local Capital Improvement Fund has a total fund balance of $10,413,169, which

is restricted for the acquisition, construction, and maintenance of capital assets. The fund balance

increased by $2,773,778, or 36.3 percent, during the 2016-17 fiscal year, primarily due to a decrease in
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construction and remodeling related expenditutes. Of the total fund balance, §582,500 has been
encumbered for specific projects.

The Capital Projects — Other Fund has a total fund balance of $12,872,439, of which $12,317,600 is
restricted for allowable putposes of various capital funding sources. The fund balance increased by
$429,380, ot 3.5 percent, primarily due to an increase in s-cent sales tax collections. Of the total fund
balance, $3,104,465 has been encumbered for specific projects.

Proptietary Fund

The unrestricted net position of the Internal Setvice Fund totaled $4,157,020 at June 30, 2017. The net
position increased by $1,172,297.58, ot 39.3 percent, duting the 2016-2017 fiscal yeat primarily due to a
transfer of $3,000,000 from the Disttict’s General Fund to establish an adequate net position for the

District’s self-insurance program and to cover the Boatrd’s portion of insurance premium increases.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

During the 2016-17 fiscal yeat, the District amended its General Fund budget several times, which
tesulted in an increase in total budgeted revenues of $8,352,799.86, or 4.4 percent. At the same time, final
budgeted expenditures are more than the original budgeted amounts by $4,817,356.16, ot 2.4 petcent.
Significant budget revisions occurred ptimarily from changes in estimated State funding and propetty

taxes.

Actual revenues are in line with the final budgeted amounts while actual expenditures are $10,535,647, or
5.1 petcent, less than final budget amounts. Actual expenditures ate less in 2016-2017 primarily due to
Restricted/Categotical projects and School Based budgets having balances left in appropriations at year-
end. Restricted/Categorical projects had a balance of $6,611,542, and School Based budgets had a
balance of $1,406,696 at year-end. Community School, ttansfers in/out, and projects that cross fiscal
years make up another $2,342,641 of the balance. The actual ending fund balance exceeded the estimated
fund balance contained in the final amended budget by $10,870,203, primarily due to the encumbrances
and appropriations from the Restricted/Categorical projects and School Based budget balances folding
back into fund balance at yeat-end.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT
Capital Assets

‘The District’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2017, is
$265,441,271 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land; land
improvements; construction in progtess; improvements other than buildings; buildings and fixed
equipment; furniture, fixtures, and equipment; motor vehicles; and audio visual materials and computer
software.

Major capital asset events included the following:

»  During the cutrent fiscal yeat, the District completed multiple projects including chiller plant and
heating, ventilating, and air conditioning renovations and building energy renovations.

1.8



» At June 30, 2017, consttuction in progtess includes multiplé projects including kitchen and
cafeteria expansions and renovations, classroom and lab additions, and paving and drainage
improvements,

Additional information on the Disttict’s capital assets can be found in Notes LE.4,, ILC,, and ILF. to the

financial statements.

Long-Term Debt

At June 30, 2017, the District has total long-term debt outstanding of $34,874,715, composed of
$2,032,661 of bonds payable and $32,842,054 of certificates of participation payable. During the current
fiscal yeat, retirement of debt was $3,179,619.

Additional information on the District’s long-tetmn debt can be found in Notes LF.6 and IL.H.1. through
IL.H.4. to the financial statements.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This repott is designed to provide a general ovetview of the District’s finances for all those with an
interest in the District’s finances. Questions concerning information provided in the MD&A or other
requited supplementary information, and financial statements and notes thereto, or requests for
additional financial information should be addtessed to the Assistant Superintendent for Finance, Santa
Rosa County Disttict School Board, 5086 Canal Street, Milton, Florida 32570.
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MSFRICT SCILODL HOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2017

Priwary Governmend
Account

Cowpanent Uulis

‘Total Nonnisfor
Nuwber Govermuental Aclivities Totnl Component Unlis
ASSETS
Cash snd Cush Equivalents [$114) 69,564,369.37 69,564,569.37 207,58R.00
huvestmenits 119 IITZAT 3141167 1G]
Taxes Recelvably, Mol 1120 000 000
Acounts Recoivable, Net m3 450000 4,500.00 E3 46500
Interest Rocoivable on Javestinents 1z 0.00 0.0
Due From Other Agencles 122 " 2,118.969.47 2,118,96D.47 4,556.00
Duye From Tnsurer 1130 000 0.00
Deposils Receivable 1210 000 0.6
Inlems] Bakancos .00 .00
Cash with Fiscal/Servies Agenis 1114 .00 0.00
Section 101113, E.8, Loan Proceeds 142 .00 0,00
Invenlory 150 247.612.21 24761321 0.00
Prepaid Hiemss 230 00 11,486.00
Long-Tenu Investments 460 00 Q.00
DPrepald luswrmance Costs 0.00, 0.00
Othes Postemnployinent Beafils Assot 4,00 .00
Penslon Assel 0.00 .00
[ Capitied Assets
Land 1210 B.048.9L8.16 8,048,013.16 18500000
Land nprovanents - Noudepreciblo 1215 5458,576.6% 5.458,576.6% 009
Construction in Progress 1360 25,5147 87551047 [T
Noudeprociable Capila] Asscls 14,383.005.32 14,333,005.32 185000.00
Tprovements Qther Then, Buildings 1320 26,763,416.41 26,763 41661 56,246.00
Less Accumnlnied Depreciation 1325 17,109,290.99) {17.10%.250.99) 44,213.00)
Baildings aad Tixed Tquipment 1330 370,425, TT4.54 310.425,774,94 1,263.234.00
Loss Accurulnied Depreciation 1339 (135,262,435.25; {135.262,035,25)) 43B.BGEODY
Famiture, Mixiutes and Bquipmeni 1340 16,582 T86.00 16,582.786.00 549.926.00
Less Acenmilated Deprecinlion 1349 (11,152,540.943 {11,152,540.94 £383.303.00)
Motor Valicha 3% 3,374T0400 352747 @j 000
Loys Accumulated Deprecialion 359 (2,993,770.84) (2,993,770.84) 000
TPropery Under Capilal Eenses 370 .00 0.00
Less Accunulated Depuecintion 378 00 0.00
Audiovisunl Materils g 4,674.00 A674.00 0.00
Laows laled Depreciition 83 _£9,309.37) (9,308.37) 0.00
Camputer Softwire 352 4,393,729.00 4,393,729.00 4.00
Loss tated Anortization 380 i4,112,637.14] (4,112637.16 9.00
Digpreciably Capilal Asscls, et 251,058,266.00 251,058,266.00 140232200
Toial Capitat Asscts 26544127132 265,441,271.32 1,587,322.00
[Totol Asscta 174145904 A37,414,690.04 1,824,417,
DEFERRED OUTTLOWS OF RESQURCES
| Aeewntlated Dectease i lair Yilos of Hedging Derivatives 910 0.00 [0
ing Amoun of el Refindi 1920 YIT,176.4G 97717640 0.0
1940 46448, 20606 46,448 206,00 000
i Renelite 1950 200 000
[Total Deforred Gutfows of Resaurces 47,425,382.4D 4742538240 0.00
LIABILITIES
Cash Overdreft 2125 0.00 020
Accrued Saluies and Benelils 210 253,676.46 25367646 1747400
Payroll Deductions and Withholdhgs 2176 ATISTE 40773578 0,00
2120 429.462.94 420,482.94 E75.00
22460 0.00 000
223 0.00 000
A 2,78341 278341 000
pEa 202,601.51 202,801.31 0.00
pii] 2,182.710 2,782.70 SL.00
220 0.00 0.00
2015 0.00 Q.00
2] [ .00
21K Q.00 000
B 0.0 .00
215 H052.11 0,057.41 000
227] 23969694 2,339,696.54 000
2272 H00 200
2280 000 DR
Unepmed Rovenues 2410 3,508,815.67 3,508,815.67 7400
Noncnrrent Liabiltiies
"ortion Dus 1Pithin Gne Year:
Nales Payable 2310 0.00 TRLI0.00
Obligntions Under Cepilal Leases 2315 0.00 0.en
Honds Payallo 320 270,000.0D 270,000 000
Rinbilily for C: Alwsences 330 5,609.R36.84 5,600,836 5,100.00
1ease Parchase A Payalle 2340 2,035,000.00 2,035,800 4 .00
Ystimaied Linbilty for Long-Torm Chims 2350 a. 0.00
Net Olher Postemploynicnt Beacfits Obligation 2360 .00 .00
et Pension Ligbility 2365 0.00 9,00
Tistiniated PRCO Advance Payable 237 0.00 9.00
Other [ ong-Torm Liabilities 2380 0,00 900
Derivatlve Instramenl 1390 9.0 400
Tsfinwaled 1inbility for Arbitrage Relate 280 Q.00 000
Due Within One Yese . 791483684 791481684 78,870.00
Poriten Dz Afer One Year:
MNales Payablc 231 @00 L,0092.846.00
Dbiipations Under Caplial [ enses 231, D400 000
Bondy Puynble 23 1,762,661.00 1,762.651.00 046
Linbllily for Compensited Absences 233 13,714,286.38 13,714.286.88 040
LeagsPurchose Agreemonts Pagyable 34 0M7054.32 30,307.054.32 0.60
Eslinuded Lisbility A Long-Term Claius 351 0.00 0.60
Nat Other Postemphyment eneiiis Obligation 360 6.486,289.00 6,486,280.00 000
Not Ponsion Linbility 365 118.066,526.00 118066,526.00 00
Eslimuded PECO Advmee Payable 310 .00 .00
Ciber Long-Tenn Libifiies 2380 0 00
Deciyplive Instrument 30 .00 .00
stimnted Linbilify for Arhilnige Rebate 280 .00 .00 |
Flue In Morg than One Yoar 170,836,817.2¢ ,836,817.20 ,008,846.00 |
“Loind ] ong-Term Linpilities 198,751,654.04 .751,651.04 ,088,716.00
Tatal Linhilitics 185,969,266.36 ,967,266.36 ,108,0H) .00
DEFERUED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
| Accumnyiated Increase in Tl Waluo of Hedping Deivatives 2610 0.09 900
[Duficil Net Cancying Amount of Debt Rofunding 2620 (U] 4.00
Dyferred Reveiue 2630 Q.08 000
[Pemsion 2040 3,105,993.00 3.105,993.00 710
Other I ] Benelits 2650 9.90 00
[Tolal Deferred ¥nflows of Resourcen 3,105,993.00 3,105,993.00 006
NET POSTIION
[Nt Dnvestient n Capitn} Assels oyl 231,541 944,36 331,543,944.36 1,505,671.00
|\Resiricted For!
Categorical Conuyover Progeans 2730 6.373446.54 6,373,446.54 04D
Tood Scrvice 2750 4,519.082.11 4,519,082.11 0.0
Trelt Servico. 2750 153411682 1,934,116.02 000
Capital Projocts 2730 23 A44.039.63 23,444,039.83 0.00
Ofliee Pumpoges 2780 000 .00
Usrrestriciesh 2730 (72447,809.58) (72047,809.55; {789,344.00;
Total Net Position 195,764,819.( 195,764,819.08 714.322.00

Tho nalas lo fuctal stalemnts o in integol pazt of his statenent,
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2017
Nouvoted Capital Oiher Qler Total
Account Geneeal Tniprevancl Fand Capital Projeets G
Number 100 n In TFundy Fonds
1110 38,416,515.58 10,448,573 46 12,368 490.51 6,672,594.66 ST876,114.21
1160 1043y 00 0.00 37.783.10 3777267
1120 0.0¢ 00 0.00 .00 .00
i3 450000 00 0.00 .00 4,500.00
17 980 00 0.00 .00 00
1220 626,336 44 532843 777,570.41 631,548 87 2,041,276.15
114 oo D .00 O 00
1150 .00 [2G) .00 O 00
1210 000 0.00 .00 00 00
1142 0.00 0.00 800 00 00
114 000 008 &.00 00 .00
L1150 90.232.66 000 000 152.380.55 247,613.21 |
1230 O, 80 000 000 .00
1460 .00 .60 000 060 00
29,138,074.25 10,423,093 89 13,146,060.92 749930718 60,207,336 24
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
| Accumlated Docrease in Fair Yalue of Hedping Derivatives 1510 0.00 Q.00 .00 0.0D 000
[ Toto] Deferved Cutflows of Resources .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
[Toto] Assets ied Deferred Outflows of Resonrees 29, 138.074.25 10,423,891.89 13,146 080.92 1,499.307.18 60,207,336.24
LIAMILITIES, DEFERNED INFLOWS OF RESGURCES
ANDTUND BALANCES
LLARILITIES
Cash Overdrafl 212 £.00 .00 n.0g .00 01
Accrued Salarics and Benefils 211 248.859.03 .00 0.00 A817.43 253,676.46 |
Payroll Deductions aud Withholdings 2170 377.151.66 Q.00 0.00 30,584.12 407,735.7
Acconnls Payable 2120 125,182.46 1,724,683 203,565.3L BO,089.4Y 429.442.9:
Sales Tex Pryable 2260 0.00 .00 .00 .00 0.0
Current Noles Payable 2250 060 4.00 009 i) 00
bl 2210 0.00 G090 .00 378341 78341
2220 239444.05 000 0.00 202,601.31 442,045.36
2230 720.00 0 9.00 206270 ,782.71
2 .00 000 HOR L00 D!
2 .00 200 +00 DA0 0
2 00 DA [iAi0)] 0.00
2 Il 000 000 050 |
2 00 040 [51)] 000 .0
21¥ ) 0.80 5] 000 .0
2 00 .00 0.00 .00 00
21 .0 0.4 045711 0.0 1005710 |
2180 000 0.00 o0 00
2180 000 0.00 p.on 0
Uncorned Revenue 2410 000 0.00 0,90 0
Unavnilable Revenue. 2410 X 000 0.00 000 0
'1'ota] IAnbilitles 991,358, 19,724.68 273,622.42 332,838.46 1,608,543.96 |
DEEERRLD INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Accumulated Increase in Fair Valuo of Hedaing Derivatives 2610 2.00 0.00 0.0 000 0.00
Deferred Revenues 2630 0.00 .00 .00 000 0.00
(Taial 1vcferred [nftows of Resources oga 400 0.0 0.00 0.00
FOND BALANCES
Iavent 271 124,381.28 400 9.0 189,204.38 318,585.66
Prepaid Auunts 2712 080 400 Q.00 900 .00
Deemaanend Twnd Pringipal 2713 38+ 000 Q.00 £00 .00
‘Other Wot in Spendnble Form 2718 .00 000 08 000 00
Totui Nonspenduble Fund Balances 2710 12938128 048 000 185,204.28 318,585.66
| Rusirieted for:
Heonpmic Stabilization 2721 0.0¢ 000 iR o4 00
Vedem] Required Carsyover P 210 000 0406 040 o0 .00
Stnie Required Caur Proprms 2723 6,373,446.54 W,413.169.21 12,317.595.83 4.977,264,34 36081.479.92 |
Locol Sales Tax: and Otlier T Levy 2724 0.0 0.4 0.00 2.0 L0
Diekst Service 2725 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 00
Cnpitn] Pociects 27X Q.00 060 0.00 000
Resiricted for 27 .00 000 0.00 000
Westricted for 27! 0.00 k 0.00 0.00 .00 |
Totel Restricted Fund Belones 27X 6.373,446.54 10.413,169.21 12,317,599.83 B,577.204.34 6081 479
[ Comniticd io;
Keononuic §tabilition 271 0.00 .00 0.00 000 000
Conimciual Agreements 732 .00 .00 0.00 2.00 0.00
Canritted for 739 200 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Comnritied for 739 A,521,088.40 0.00 554,838.67 0.00 507592707
Total CommMied Pund Bajances 730 4,521,088.40 .00 55483067 Q.00 S075.52707
| Avsigtend to:
Spocinl Reveane 7 0.00 400 ] Q.08 0.00
Dl Service 7 0.00 400 400 200 0.00
Capilal Projeets 7 00 .00 200 £.00 0.00
Permumient Fund 7 20 0.00 [15:]1] 000 (]
Assipned lor 742 a00 0.00 00 /)] 0060
Asslpned for 74y 74,1455 0.0 040 [iXH)] 874,445.50
Total Assigned Fond Hatmes 740 174,145 50 000 0.0 .00 §74,145.50
Total  Fitsed Buudmives 750 145,248,654.2 000 000 0.00 6,248,654 33
Totul Fund Bulnaces 700 28,146,716.0! W,413,169.11 12,872,438.50 7.166,468.72 58,596,7292.48
Toial Liablitles, Peforred Inflows of
Resources sud Fund Bolances 25,i38074.25 10,423,893.89 13,146,060.92 74%9,307.15 60,207,136.24

Thenoles (o fhiancial statements ee an integral part of Ihis atolensend,
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Exhibit C-2
Page 5
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSTTION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 58,598,792.48
Amounts teported for governmental activities in the staternent of net position are different because:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in the governmental funds. 2605,441,271.32

Deferred charges on debt refundings are not expended in the government-wide statements but are
reported as deferred outflows of resources and amortized over the life of the debt. 977,176.40

Other jong-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore,
are deferred in the funds. 0.00

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities,
such as insurance, to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds
are included in governmental activities in the staternent of net position. ' 6,157,019.92

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported as
liabilities in the governmental funds. Long-ierm liabilities at fiscal year-end consist of!

Certificates of Participation Payable §  (32,842,054.32)
Bonds Payable (2,032,661.00)
Compensated Absences Payable (19,324,123.72)
Net Pension Liability (118,066,526.00)
Other Postemployment Benefits Payable (6,486,289.00) (178,751,654.04)

The deferred outflows of resources and defetred inflows of resources related & pensions are
applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Deferred Outlows Related to Pensions $ 46,448,206.00
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions (3,105,993.00) 43,342.213.00

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities $ 195,764,819.08

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
ESE 145




Exhibit C-3

Page 6

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CITANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Nonveted Capital Other Other Total
Account Gengral Iimprovement Fund Capital Projects Goevemnmental Governinental
Number 160 370 390 Funds Funds

REVENUES

Federal Direct 3100 497,223,73 0.00 0.00 3.041,088.53 3,538,312.26

Federal Through State and Local 3200 1,216,526.11 0.00 0,40 19,313,586.59 20,530,112.70

State Sources 3300 144,133,897.50 0.00 235,733.14 2,045,129.32 146,414,759.96

Local Sotirces:

Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3411, 3421,

Operational Purposes 3423 49,429,7064.84 .00 .00 0.00 46.429,764.84
Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3412, 3421, N
Debt Service 3423 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Troperty Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3413, 3421,

Capital Projects 3423 0.00 12,717,474.82 0.00 0.00 12,717,474.82
Local Sales Taxes 3418, 3419 0.00 0.00 8,938,745.78 0.00 8,938,745.78
Charges for Service - Food Service 345X 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,280,359.04 4,280,399.04
Impact Fees 3496 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 .00
Other Local Reveiug 4,580,394 05 1,316.45 231,556.92 197,772.33 3,011,036.78
Total Local Sources 3400 54,010,158,89 12,718,791.27 9,170,302, 70 4,478,171 .37 80,377,424 23

Taotal Revennes 199,857,806.23 12,718,791.27 9,406,035 84 28,877,975 .81 250,860,609.15

EXPENDITURES

Curvenf:

Insiroction 5000 124,551,316.17 Q.00 0.00 7,665,947.13 132,217,263.30
Student Support Services $100 §,842,720.26 0.00 0.00 1,088.044.27 7,930,764.53
Instructional Media Services 5200 1,985,542.49 0.00 0.00 50,481.02 2,036,023.51
Insteuction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 3,514,570.35 .00 0.00 2,650,253.89 6,164,324.24
Insttuetional Staff Training Services 5400 2,155,591.47 0.00 Q.00 1,519,272.04 3,674,863.51
1 ion-Refated Technolopy 5500 5,289,944.95 0.00 0.60 26134251 5,552,287.46
Board 7100 737,216.33 .00 0.00 0.00 737,216.33
General Administration 7200 740,225.58 0.00 0.00 462,541.50 1,202,767.08
School Administration 7300 13,902,426.74 0.00 0,00 159,400.28 14,061,827.02
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410 4,119.62 279,701.64 236,976,66 4,200.00 524,997.92
TFiscal Services 7500 1,145,919.07 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,145,916.07
Food Services 7600 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,293,565.51 11,293,565.51
Ceniral Services 7700 2,352,321.80 0.00 0.00 51,425.03 2,403,746.83
Student Transportation Services 7800 11,832,257.53 0.00 0.00 26,934.99 11,859,192.52
Operation of Plant 7900 13,150,563.16 0.00 0.00 47,380.86 13,197,944.02
Mai of Plant 8100 3,637,337.52 228,114.59 1.683,112.38 86,521.36 5,635,085.85
Adminisirative Technobogy Services 8200 2,028,637.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,028,637.74
& ily Services 9108 1,809,827.40 0.00 0.00 604,238.81 2,414,066.21
Debt Service: (Function 9200) .
Redemption of Priticipal 710 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.685,000.00 2,689,000.00
Interest 720 0.00 0.00 Q.00 1,553,017.77 1,553,617.77
Dues and Fees 730 0.00 0.00 0.00 14.400.41 14,400.41
Miscellaneous 190 0.00 .00 .00 188,471.76 188,471,776

Capital Qutlay:

Tipeilities Acquisition and Construction 7420 28,675.67 2,780,777.13 4,609,642.26 648,136.84 8,067,281.90
Other Capital Ouilay 2300 980,673.53 40.904.97 393,701.69 243,090.84 1,658,371.03

Total Expendltures 196,689,887.38 3,329,498.33 6,923,432.99 31,309,316.82 238,252,135.52

Exeess (Defiel ol R Over (Under) Expendifures 3,167,918.85 9,389,262.94 2,482,602.85 (2,431,341.01) 12,608,473.63

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

1: of Bonds : 3710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Promium on Sale of Bonds 3791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Discount on Sale of Bonds 891 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Proceeds of Lease-Purchase Agreements 3750 0.00 Q000 0.00 0.00 0.00
Preminm on Lense-Purchase Agr 3793 0.00 {.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Discount on Lease-Purchase Agreements 293 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Loans 3720 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Sale of Capital Assets 3730 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Loss Recoveries 340 33,623.72 .00 101,723.71 0.00 135,347.43

Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Proceeds from Speeial Facility Construction Account 770 0.00 0.00 0.00 (.00 0.00

Face Yalue of Refunding Bonds 3715 0.00 0.00 0.00 162,000.00 162,000.00
Premiun on Refunding Bonds 3792 0.00 0.00 0.00 24,601.43 2460143
Diiscount on Refunding Bonds 8§92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Refunding Lease-Purchase Agr 3755 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Premiym on Refunding Lease-Purchase Ag 3794 .00 040 0.00 0.00 0,00
Discount on Refunding Lease-Purchase Agresments 804 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00

Payments to Refiinding Fscrow Agent (Function $209) 760 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transfers in 3600 5,302,504.57 .00 000 3,788,152.81 9,090,717.38

Transfers Oul 9700 (3,319,025.59) (6,615,514.78) {2,154,947.00) {1,230.01) (12,090,717.38)

‘Total Other Fi ing Sources (Uses) 2,017,162.70 (6,615,514.78) {2,053,223.29) 3,973,524.23 {2,678,05L.14)

SPLECIAL ITEMS

0.00 0.00 9.00 0.00 8.00

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net Cliange in Fund Balances 5,185,081.55 2,713,778.16 429,379.56 1,542,183.22 9,930,422.49

Fund Balances, July 1, 2016 2800 22,961,634.50 1,639,301.05 12,443,058.54 5,624,285.50 48,668,369.99

Adj to Fund Balang: 289 0.00 0.00 G.00 0.00 0,00

Yund Balances, June 30, 2017 2700 28,146,716.05 10,413,169.21 12,872,438.50 7.166,468.72 58,508,762.48

‘The nates to financial statements are an intepral part of this stalement,
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital ouflays as expenditures; however, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as a depreciation
expense. This is the amount of depreciation expense in excess of capital outlays in the current period.

The statement of activities reflects only the gain/loss on the sale of assets, whereas
the governmental funds include all proceeds from these sales. Thus, the change in
net position differs from the change in fund balances by the cost of assets sold.

Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position,

Some revenues and expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as revenues and expenditures in the governmental funds,
Amortized Charge o Debt Refunding $ (82,228.80)
Amortized Premiums 305,619.20

Revenue not reporied in the governmental funds but reported in the statement of activities.

In the statement of activities, the cost of compensated absences is measured by the amounts earned
during the fiscal year, while in the governmental funds, expenditures are recognized based on the amounts
actually paid for compensated absences.

Other postemployment benefits costs are recorded in the statement of activities under the full
acerual basis of accounting, but are not recorded in the governmental funds until paid. This is the
net increase in the other postemployment benefits liability for the current fiscal vear.

Governmental funds report district pension contributions as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of pension benefits carned net of employee contributions is reported as a pension
expense.

FRS Pension Coniribution $ 6,398.,970.00
HIS Pension Contribution 2,003,926.00
FRS Pension Expense : : (10,606,778.00)
HIS Pension Expense {(4,040,368.00)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain activities,
such as insurance, to individual funds. The net revenue of internal service
funds is reported with governmental activities.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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9,930,422.49

(1,799,960.93)
{358,330.60)

2,689,000.00

223,390.40

(8,438.65)
605,743.55

{1,433,270.00)

(5,744,250.00)

3,172,297.58

7,276,603.84




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF NET FOSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 3%, 2017
Goveramental
Activities -
Account Internal Service:
Number Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1110 11.688,305.16
Tnveshnenls 1160 .00
Accounis Receivable, Net 1131 0.00
Interest Receivable on Investments L 0.00
D¢ From Ofher Agencies 1220 77,693.32
Due From Insurer 1180 0.00
Dus From Budgetary Funds 1141 9.00
Deposits Receivable 1210 .00
Cash with Fiscal/Service Apents 1114 0.00
Section 1011.13, F.8,, Loan Proceeds 1420 0.00
Inventory 1150 0.00
Prepaid Ilems 1230 ¢.00
Long-Term Investments 1460 0.00
Prepaid Insurance Cosls 1430 0.00
Gther Postemployment Benefits Asset 1410 0.00
Pension Asset 14135 0.00
Caplfal Assels:
Land 1310 0.00
Land Impro ts - Nondepreciabl 1315 0.00
Construction in Progress 1360 0.00
Nondepreciable Capital Assets 0.00
Tmprovements Cther Than Buildings 1320 0.00
Acenmnulated Depreciation 1329 0,00
Buildings and Fixed Bquipment 1330 0.00
Accuminlated Depreciation 1339 0.0¢
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 1340 0.00
A lated Depreciation 1349 0.00
Motor Vehicles 1350 0.00
A lated Depreciation 1359 0.00
Property Under Capitai Leases 1370 0.00
Accumulated Bepreciation 1379 0.00
Computer Soflware 1382 .00
Accumulated Amortization 1389 0,00
Depreciable Capital Assets, Met 0.00
‘T'otal Capital Assets 0.00
"Total Assels 11,766,088.48
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accumulated Decrease in Falr Value of Hedging Derivatives 1919 0.00
Net Carrying Amount of Debt Refunding 19290 0.00
Peasion 1940 0.00
Otlier Postemployinent Benefits 1950 0.00
‘Total Deferrer Ontflows of Resources 0,00
LIABILITIES
Cash Overdraft 2125 0.60
Accrued Salaries and Benefits pAY1H) Q.00
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 0,00
Accounts Payable . 2120 0.00
Sales Tax Payable 2269 0.00
Accrued Interest Payable 2214 0.00
Drepesits Payable 2220 0.00
Dug to Other Agencles 2230 0.00
Due to Budgstary Funds 2161 0.00
Pension Liability B 2115 0.00
Other Pestemployment Benefits Liability 2118 0.00
Jndgmenis Payable 2130 0.00
Estimated Unpaid Claimns - Self-Insurance Program 2271 2,100,252.89
Dstimated Liability for Claims Adjustment 2272 0.00
Lnearned Revenues 2410 3,508.815.67
Nowcurrenl Liabilities
Portion Due Within One Year:
Obligations Under Capital Leases 2315 0.00
Liability for Com d Absences 2330 000
Bstimated Liability for Long-T'srm Claims 2350 0.00
Net Othor Postemployment Benefits Obligation 2360 0.00
Net Pension Liability 2365 0.00
Other Long-Term Liabililies 2380 Q.00
Due Within Ong Year 0.00
Portlon Due Afier Gne Year:
Obligatious Under Capilal Leases 2315 0.00
Liability for Compensated Absences 2330 0.00
Fstimated Liability for Long-Term Claims 2350 .00
Net Other Postemnployment Benefits Obligation 2360 .00
Net Fension Liability 2365 0.00
Otler Long-T'erm Liabilities 2380 0.00
Due in More Than One Year 0.00
Total Long-Term Liabilities .00
Tatal Liabifities 5,600,068.56
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
A Jated Increase in Fair Value of Hedping Derivatives 26190 0.00
Deficit Net Cantying Awount of Debt Refuading 2620 0.00
Deferred Revenues 2630 0.00
Pensicn 2640 0.00
Other Postemployment Benefits 2650 0.00
Total Deferred Tnflows of Resources 0.00
NIT POSITION
Net Tuvestment in Capital Assels 2770 Q.00
Restricted for 2780 2,000,000.00
Unrestricied 2790 4,157.019.92
Tatal Not Position 6,157,019.92

The netes to financlal statements ave an integral part of this statement,
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Exhibit C-6

Pace
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY ’
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
Governmental
Activities -
Account Internal Service
Number Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services 3481 0.00
Charges for Sales 3482 0.00
Premium Revenue 3484 16,871,241.55
Other Operating Revenues 3489 0.00
Total Operating Revenues 16,871,241.55
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 100 0.00
Employee Benefits 200 0.00
Purchased Services 300 922 637.38
Energy Services 400 0.00
Materials and Supplies 500 380.16
Capital Outlay 600 0.00
Other 700 16,257,115.40
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 780 0.00
Total Operating Expenses 17,180,132,94
Operating Income (Loss) (308,891.39)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Income 3430 840.58
Gifts, Grants and Bequests 3440 (.00
Other Miscellaneous Local Sources 3495 480,348.39
Loss Recoveries 3740 0.00
Gain on Disposition of Assets 3780 0.00
Interest 720 0.00
Miscellaneous 790 0.00
Loss on Disposition of Assets 810 0.00
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 481,188.97
Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers 172,297.58
Transfers In 3600 3,000,000.00
Transfers Out 9700 0.00
SPECIAL ITEMS

0.00
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

0.00
Change In Net Position 3,172,297.58
Net Position, July 1, 2016 2880 2,984,722.34
Adjustments fo Net Position 2896 0.00
Net Position, June 30, 2017 2780 6,157,019.92

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

ESE 145




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROTRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Govermmental
Activities -
Intemal Service
Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users 18,221,912.11
Receipts from interfind services provided 0.00
Payments to suppliers (923,197.54)
Payments to employees 0.00
Payments for interfund services used 0.00
Other receipts (payments) (16,257,115.40)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities [ 1,041,599.17
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCATITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Subsidies from operating grants 0.00
Transfers from other funds 3,000,000.00
Transfers to other funds 0.00
Not cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 3,000,000.00
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proseeds from capital debt 0.00
Capital contributions 0.00
Proceeds from disposition of capital assets 0.00
| Acquisition and construciion of capital assets 0.00
Frincipal paid on capital debt . 0.00
Interest paid on capital debt 0.00
Net cash provided (used) by capital and velated financing activities i 0.00
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investiments 0.00
Interest and dividends received 340.58
Purchase of investments 0.00
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 840,58
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,042,439,75
Cash and cash equivalents - July 1, 2016 , 1,962,111.86
Cash and cash equivalents - June 30, 2017 12,004,551.61

Reconciliation of operating income (Loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) 1,538,956.18

|\ Adjusiments to recencile operating income (loss) to net cash
\provided {used) by operating activities:

Depreciation/Amortization expense .00
Commeodities used from USDA program 0.00
Change in asseis and fiabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 0.00
(Incregse) decrease in interest receivable (20.56)
(Increase} decrease in due from insurer 0.00
. (Incrcase) decrease in deposits receivable 0.00
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds 96,526.80
(Increase) decrease in due from other agencics 0,00
{Increase) deczease in inventory 0.00
{Incrense) decrease in prepaid items 0.00
(Increase) decrease in pension 0.00
Increase (decrease) in salaries and benefits payable 0.00
Increase (decrease) in payroll tax liabititics 0.00
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 0.00
Increase (decrease) in cash overdraft 0.00
Increase (decrease) in judgments payable 0.00
Increase (decrease) in sales tax payable 0.00
Inerease (decroase) in acorued iuicrest payable 0.00
Increase (decrease) in deposils payable 0.00
Increase (decrease} in dus to other funds 0.00
Incroase (decrease) in due to other agencies 0.00
Inerease (decrease) in unsarned revenues ) (613,426,31)
Incroase (decreass) in pension 0.00
Inerease (decrense) in other postemployment benefits 0.00
Increass (decrense) in ostimated unpaid claims - Self-Insurance Prog. 200,563,006
Inerease (decrgase) in estinated Hability for elaims adjustment {181,000.00)
Total adjustments 497,357.01)
Net cash previded (used) by operating activities 1,041,599.17
Noncash investing, eapital and financing activities:
Borrowing under capital lease 0.00
Contributions of capital assets 0.00
Purchasc of equipment en ascount 0.00
Capital assef trade-ins 0.00
Net Increase/(Decrease) in the fair value of investments 0.0¢
Commedities received through USDA program 0.00

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statomont,
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PISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2017
Account Total Agency Funds
Number 89X
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1110 3,701,689.96
Investments 1160 0.00
Accounts Receivable, Net 1131 0.00
Pension Confributions Receivable 1132 sy,
Interest Receivable on Investments 1170 0.00
Due From Budgetary Funds 1141 0.00
Due From Other Agencies 1220 0.00
Inventory 1150 0.00
Total Assets 3,701,689.96
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES //////////
Accumulated Decrease in Fair Value of Hedging Derivatives 1910
Pension 1940 I, I
Other Postemployment Beneﬂts 1930 7 /X/// M /,’W/
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources v W m
LIABILITIES
Cash Overdraft 2125 0.00
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 2110 0.00
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 176,525.07
Accounts Payable 2120 289,976.05
Internal Accounts Payable 2290 3,230,688.84
Due to Other Agenocies 2230 77
Due to Budgetary Funds 2161 4,500.,00
Total Liabilities 3,701,689.96
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESCURCES /////////
Accumulated Increase in Fair Value of Hedging Derivatives 2610
Pension 2640 i,
Other Postemployment Benefits 2650 /;’}Wj
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources ’;,// / /,';/ )
NET POSITION ////////
Held in Trust for Pension Benefits 2785
Held in Trust for Other Purposes 2785 e / /
Total Net Position L //////A

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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BISTRICT SCHOQL DOARI OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

MAJOIR AND NONMAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

e 30, 2017

Acoount Totn] Nowmajor
Numibar Component Unlly ‘Total Component Units
ASEFTS
Cash and Cash Fquivalenls 207,588.00 207,588.00
Investments 0.00 .00
“Taxus Receivable, Nel 0.00 00
Aecounts Recchvable, Mot §3,465.00 13,465.00
Tterost Receivable on Invesimets 0.00 00
Tue From Othor Agencley 220 4,556.00 4,556.00
| Due From Lsuror 130 00 00
Dupusits Reguivable 210 00 0.00
Tnternal Batagees 06 0.00
Cash with FlsenlServico Agents 114 0D 0.00
Seetion 1011.13, F.8. Loon Proceods 420 00 0.00
Tnyentory 150 200 D00
Prepaid Hems 230 11,486.00 1148600
Long-Terzn Tnvesinienta 460 000 000
Prepnid Insurance Costs. 430 000 000
Qther Postemployment Bonofils Assct 410 0.00 000
Peasion Asset 415 000 000
Cerpttal Assets:
Land 1310 145000.00 185600400
Lend Iinprovements - Nondepreciable 1315 [1)1] 046
Construclion in Progress 1360 0.00 0.00
Nendernecinble Capital Asscls 185,000.00 185,000.00
Empravements Other Thien Buikings 20 56,246.00 56,246.00
1.es5 Accunulated Depreciation 320 (34,913.00 {44,913.009)
Buildings and Fiscd Bquipmnent 330 1,263,234.00 1,263,234,00
1.ess Accumulnied Demecition 339 (38.868.00 {38,868.00|
Tomilure, Hatores nod Tquipment o 549,936.00 549,926.00
Less Accumnulntest Depecintion B (383,103.00) {383,303,00)]
Motor Vehickes {i] 0.00 [
Less Aceunnlaled Demecintion 1359 0.00 600
Property Under Capital Leases 1370 0.00 0.00
Less Acennulated Demecintion 1379 0.00 000
Audhiovisual Materinls 1381 0.00 @00
Less Accumulated Depecintion 1388 0.00 9.00
Computer Soflveare: 1382 0.00 a.00
Lesg Accunilated Asoriialion 1389 0.00 a.00
Demeciable Capilal Assets, Nel 1,402,322.00 1,402,332.00
Total Capital Assels 1,587,322.00 1,587,322,00
[Total Asscts 182441700 1,824,417.00
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESQOURCES
| Accimnlnied Degrense In Dnir Value of Hedping Derivatives 1210 00 4,00
Nel Canying Amonnd of Debd ] 1920 00 9.00
Pension 1940 ] ¢.00
Cihey Postemployniend Denglis 1950 L] 0.00
Totnl Deferred Qulflows of Resources 00 000
LIABILITIES
Cash Overdmit 25 00 0.00
Accrued Salocies and Beriofits 10 1747406 1747400
Tayroll Deduclions aud Withholdings yil 800 0.00
Acceunts Payable 20 87500 875.00
Sules Tax Paynble 260 £00 000
Curzent Noles Fayablo 250 D00 000
Accrued Interest Pryable 210 000 000
Deposits Payablo 220 000 .00
[ Buc to Other Agencics 230 5140 SLOE
| D 10 Fiseal Ageat .00 60
| Feusion Linbility 0,0} .00
DOther Poslemploymeat Benefits Linbility 0.00 LD
Judgmenls Fayabke 3 0.00 00
Caonstruetion Conbncts Payebla 0 0.00 )
Construction Cootiacts Piyebls - Retained Percentage i 8.00 I
Estimated Unpaid Claims - Sell-Insurance Prograet 22 0.00 DY
Estimated Linbility for Chuins Adjnstment 2272 000 )
Estimuted Linbility for Arbitrage Rebata 2280 0,00 0D
Uncaried Revenaes 2410 974,00 .00
(Neacitirent Ltabtiiles
Portion Due Withtn One Year:
Notes Pryalblo 2310 7377000 73,770.00
Olligations Under Copital Leasss 2315 oo 0.00
Tonds Payable 232 00 005
Lizhility fr Ce Alseuces 233 5,100.00 5,100.00
Lonse-Parchnse & Tayably 334 00 0.00
Estbnated Linbilily br Long-Tenn Clains 233 00 .00
Net Other Posternployment Benefits Obligation 36 0.00 4.00
* Not Pension Liohility 365 000 0.00
Estimated PECO Advanee Payalile 370 0.00 0.00
Other Leng-Term Lisbilities 2380 0,00 .00
Derivative fnstrument 23%0 009 0.00
Bslimaled Lisbility for Arbitge Rebate 2280 Q.00 6,00
Due Within Qne Year 7887000 78,870.00
Fortton Biic Afer One Year:
Noles Payabla - px][i} 100984600 1,009,346,00
Obkigations Under Copital Ienses 2315 LG 000
Sonds Paynble 220 Q.00 0.00
ty for Componsated Absences FEE) G.0u 000
Tease-Furchase Agrocments Payable M0 .00 .00
Esllnwted Linbilily for Long-Tenn Clabing 2150 200 040
Nt Other P A Benofits Obligation 2360 Dae 000
Net Pension Eablity 2365 D40 040
Estimated PECO Advance Payable 2370 040 040
Othor Long-Tonn Lixbiiities 2380 0400 040
Deyivetive 2390 0400 000
Estimnted Linhility for Arbitrano Robate 2280 0400 040
Dug in Moro than Ona Year 100984600 00984600
Tolal Long-Tenn Lisbitities 1888,716.00 08B, T1640
[Totnl Llublities 1,108,090.00 JLO8,000.00
NEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESCHIRCES
Accunulated Increase in Fair Valuo of Hledaing Devivatives 2610 .00 0.00
Deficit Net Crrrying Anount of Delil Refunding 2620 .00 0.50
Defoureil Revenues 2630 .00 0.00
Pension 2640 0.00 oo
Other Pestemployment Benefit 2650 Q.00 0.0
Tetal Beferred Inflows of Resonrces 0.00 0,00
NET POSITION
oL in Capitnl Assels 2170 1.503,671.00 1,505,671.00
Rastyteted For:
Categorieat Cawvyover Programs 780 .00 .00
Hood Service 780 00 .00
Dbt Servies 780 00 .00
Capital Pigjeels 780 .00 .00
Oher Puiposes 780 og .00
Unnesiricted 790 {78Y9,344.00 (789.344.00)
T'otnl Net Poslilan 7]6.327,ﬂ F16,337.00

"The notzs o financiat statements are an integral port of this staturment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A, Description of Government-wide Financial Statements

B.

The government-wide financial statements {i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) repott information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and
its component units. All fiduciary activities ate teported only in the fund financial statements.
Governmental activities, which normally ate supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
other nonexchange transactions, are repotted separately from certain legally separate component

units for which the primaty government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for each function or program of the Santa Rosa County School District’s (District) governmental
activities. Direct expenses ate those that are specifically associated with a setvice, program, ot
department and are thereby cleatly identifiable to a particular function. Depreciation expense that
is clearly identifiable to a function is allocated to the function, and the remaining depreciation

expense is reported as unallocated.

Reporting Entity
The Santa Rosa County Disttict School Board (Board) has direct responsibility for operation,

control, and supervision of District schools and is considered a primary government for financial
reporting. The District is considered part of the Florida system of public education, opetates under
the peneral direction of the Flotida Depatiment of Education (FDOE), and is governed by State
law and State Board of Education (SBE) rules. The governing body of the Disttict is the Board,
which is composed of five elected members. ‘The elected Supetintendent of Schools is the executive
officer of the Board, Geographic boundaties of the District correspond with those of Santa Rosa
County.

Critetia for determining if other entities ate potential component units which should be reported
within the District’s basic financial statements ate identified and desctibed in the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Codgfication of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporiing
Standards, Sections 2100 and 2600. The application of these criteria provides for identification of
any legally separate entities for which the Board is financially accountable and other organizations
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the Board are such that exclusion
would cause the District’s basic financial statements to be misleading. Based on the application of
these criteria, the following component units ate included within the District’s reporting entity:

Blended Component Unit - Blended component units are, in substance, part of the District’s
operations, even though they are legally separate entities. 'Thus, a blended component unit is
approptiately presented as part of the District. ‘The Santa Rosa School Board Leasing Corporation
(Leasing Corpotation) was formed to facilitate financing for the acquisition of facilities and
equipment as fusther discussed in a subsequent note. Due to the substantive economic relationship

between the District and the Leasing Cotpotation, the financial activities of the Leasing
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Corportation are included in the accompanying basic financial statements. Sepatate financial

statements for the Leasing Cotporation ate not published.

Discretely Presented Component Units - The component units’ columns in the govetnmeni-

wide financial statements include the financial data of the Disttict's other component units. A

separate column is used to emphasize that they are legally separate from the Disttict.

The District’s chartet schools, the Learning Academy, Inc. and Capstone Academy, LLC, ate not-
fot-profit corporations organized pursuant to Chapter 617, Florida Statutes, the Florida Not for
Profit Cotporation Act, and Section 100233, Flotida Statutes. The chatter schools operate under
a charter approved by their sponsor, the Santa Rosa County District School Board. The charter
schools are considered to be component units of the District because the District is financially
accountable for the charter schools as the District established the chatter schools by approval of
the charter, which is tantamoust to the initial appointment of the chatter schools, and there is the
potential for the charter schools to impose specific financial burdens on the District. In addition,
putsuant to the Flotida Constitution, the charter schools ate public schools, and the District is

tesponsible for the operation, control, and supetvision of public schools within the District.

The financial data teported on the accompanying statements was detived from the charter schools’
audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The audit reports are filed in
the Disttict’s administrative offices at 5086 Canal Street, Milton, Florida 32570.

Basis of Presentation: Government-wide Financial Statements

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they ate intettelated.
The governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds and the internal
service fund. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, the proptietary
fund, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter ate excluded from the government-wide financial

statements.

The effects of interfund activity have been eliminated from the government-wide financial

statements except for interfund services provided and used.

Basis of Presentation; Fund Financizl Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the District’s funds, including the
fiduciary funds and blended component units. Sepatate statements for each fund category —
governmental, proptictary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial
statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining

governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:
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o  General Fund — to account for all financial resoutces not tequited to be accounted for
in another fund, and for certain revenues from the State that ate legally restricted to be
expended for specific current operating pusposes.

o Capital Projects — Local Capital Improvement Fund — to account fot the financial
resources genetated by the local capital improvement tax levy to be used for educational

capital outlay needs, including new construction, renovation and remodeling projects,
new and replacement equipment, and debt setvice payments on certficates of
patticipation.

e Capital Projects - Other Fund — to account for vatious financial resoutces (e.g.,
certificates of participation, capital outlay sales tax, hurricane-related loss recoveries) to
be used for educational capital outlay needs, including new construction and renovation
and remodeling projects.

Additionally, the District reports the following proptietaty and fiduciary fund types:

e Internal Service Fund — to account for the District’s individual self-insurance program.

¢ Agency Funds — to account for resoutces of the District’s flexible benefits plan and the
school internal funds which are used to administer moneys collected at schools in
connection with school, student athletic, class, and club activities.
Duting the coutse of opetations, the District has activity between funds for various purposes. Any
residual balances outstanding at fiscal year-end are repotted as due from/to other funds. While
these balances ate reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the
prepatation of the government-wide financial statements. Certain activity occurs during the fiscal
yeat involving transfers of resources between funds. In fund financial statements, these amounts
are reported at gross amounts as transfers in and out. While repotted in fund financial statements,
certain eliminations ate made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements.
Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated in preparation of

the government-wide financial statements.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measutement
focus and basis of accounting, Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measuted
such as cuttent financial resoutces or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the

timing of transactions or events for recogaition in the financial statements.

The gpovernment-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the acctual basis of accounting. Revenues ate recognized when earned,
and expenses are recognized when a liability is incutted, regardless of the timing of the related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized in the yeat for which they are levied. Revenues from grants,
entitlements, and donations ate recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the

provider have been met.

The governmental fund financial statements ate repotted using the current financial resoutces
measutement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, except for certain

grant revenues, are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
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consideted to be available when they ate collectible within the current period or soon enough
theteafter to pay liabilities of the cuttent petiod. For this purpose, the District considers revenues
to be available if they ate collected within 30 days of the end of the curreat fiscal year. When grant
tetms provide that the expenditure of tesources is the prime factor for determining eligibility for
Federal, State, and other grant resoutces, revenue is recognized at the time the expenditure is made.
Entitlements ate recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time
requirements, and the amount is received duting the period ot within the availability petiod for this
tevenue source (within 30 days of year-end). Expenditures are generally recognized when the
related fund liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting, However, debt service expenditures,
claims and judgments, pension benefits, other postemployment benefits, and compensated
absences, afe only recorded when payment is due, General capital asset acquisitions are reported
as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-tetm debt and acquisitions under capital
leases are reported as othet financing soutces. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation, ate not

tecognized in governmental funds.

The proprietary fund is repotted using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual

hasis of accounting.

The agency funds have no measurement focus but utilize the accrual basis of accounting for
tepotting assets and liabilities.

The chatter schools are accounted for as governmental organizations and follow the same

accounting model as the District’s governmental activities.

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund

Balance

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District’s cash and cash equivalents ate considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
and short-term liquid investments with original maturities of 3 months or less from the date of
acquisition. Investments classified as cash equivalents include amounts placed with the State
Boatd of Administration (SBA} in Florida PRIME.

Cash deposits ate held by banks qualified as public depositoties under Florida law. All deposits
are insured by Federal depository insurance, up to specified limits, or collateralized with
secutities held in Florida's multiple financial institution collateral pool as required by Chapter
280, Florida Statutes.

2. Investments

Investments consist of amounts placed in SBA debt seivice accounts for investment of debt
setvice moneys and amounts placed with the SBA for participation in the Florida PRIME
investment pool created by Sections 218.405, Florida Statutes. The investment pool operates
under investment guidelines established by Section 215.47, Florida Statutes.
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The District’s investments in Flotida PRIME, which the SBA indicates is a Securities and
Exchange Commission Rule 2a7-like external investment pool, are similar to money market
funds in which shates are owned in the fund rather than the underlying investments. These

investments are reported at fair value, which is amortized cost.
Types and amounts of investments held at fiscal yeat-end ate described in a subsequent note.
Inventories

Inventoties consist of expendable supplies held for consumption in the coutse of District
operations. Inventories are stated at cost on a moving-avetage basis, except that transportation
fuel is stated at the last invoice ptice, which approximates the first-in, first-out basis, and United
States Depattment of Agriculture donated foods are stated at their fair value as detetmined at
the time of donation to the District's food setvice program by the Florida Department of
Agriculture and Consumer Setvices, Bureau of Foed Distribution. The costs of inventories are

tecorded as expenditutes when used rather than purchased.

Capital Assets

Expenditutes for capital assets acquired ot constructed for general District pusposes ate
reported in the governmental fund that financed the acquisition or construction. The capital
assets so acquired are reported at cost in the government-wide statement of net position but
ate not reported in the governmental fund financial statements. Capital assets are defined by
the District as those costing more than $1,000, except for buildings and improvements othet
than buildings which are defined by the District as assets costing more than §5,000. Such assets
are tecorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if putchased or constructed. Donated

assets are tecotded at acquisition value at the date of donation.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful

lives:
Description Estimated Useful Lives
Improvements Other Than Buildings 10 - 40 years
Buildings and Fixed Equipment 10 - 50 years
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 3 - 20 years
Motor Vehicles 15 years
Audio Visual Materials and Computer Softwate 5 - 7 yeats

Current fiscal year information relative to changes in capital assets is described in a subsequent

note,
Pensions

In the government-wide statement of net position, liabilities are recognized for the District’s

roportionate shate of each pension plan’s net pension liability. Fot purposes of measutin the
prop P P p purp g
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net pension liability, deferted outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Flotida
Retirement System (FRS) defined benefit plan and the Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) defined
benefit plan and additions to/deductions from the FRS and HIS fiduciary net position have
been detetmined on the same basis as they are reported by the FRS and the HIS plans. For this
putpose, benefit payments {including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when

due and payable in accordance with benefit tetms. Investments are reported at fair value.
‘The Disttict’s retiretnent plans and related amounts are described in a subsequent note.

Long-Term Liabilities

Long-tetm obligations that will be financed from resources to be received in the future by
governmental funds are repotted as liabilities in the government-wide statement of net position.
Debt premiums and discounts ate defetred and amortized over the life of the debt. Bonds and

certificates of patticipation payable ate reported net of applicable premiums ot discounts.

In the govetnmental fund financial statements, bonds and other long-term obligations are not
recognized as liabilities until due. Governmental fund types recognize debt premivums and
discounts duting the current fiscal year.

Changes in long-term liabilities for the cutrent fiscal year are repotted in a subsequent note.

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position tepotts a sepatrate section for deferred
outflows of tesources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resonrces,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resoutces (expense) until then. The District has two items that
qualify for reporting in this category. The first item is deferred charges on debt refunding that
results from the difference in the cartying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price.
This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding
debt. The secoad item is a deferred amount related to pensions which is discussed in a

subsequent note.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and the governmental funds balance
sheet report a separate section for defetted inflows of resoutces. This separate financial
statement element, dgferred inflows of resomrees, represents an acquisition of net position that applies
to future periods and so will not be tecognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that
time. ‘The District has one type of item that qualifies fot teporting in this category. It is a
deferted amount related to pensions which is only reported on the government-wide statement

of net position and which is discussed in a subsequent note.

Net Position Flow Assumption

The District occasionally funds outlays for a particulat putpose from both restricted (e.g.,

restricted bond or grant proceeds) and untestricted tesources. To caleulate the amounts to
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repott as restricted — net position and unrestricted — net position in the government-wide and
proptietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the otrder in
which the resources ate consideted to be applied. Consequently, it is the District’s policy to
consider restricted net position to have been depleted before unrestricted net position is

applied.
Fund Balance Flow Assumption

The District may fund outlays for a patticular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted
resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). To calculate the
atounts to repott as testricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the
governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the otder in
which the resources are considered to be applied. Itis the District’s policy to consider restricted
fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund
balance. Further, when components of untestticted fund balance can be used for the same
purpose, committed fund balance is depleted fitst, followed by assigned fund balance.
Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

Fund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categoties based on the nature of
any limitations requiring the use of tesources for specific purposes. The District itself can
establish limitations on the use of resoutces through eithet a commitment (committed fund

balance) ot an assignment (assigned fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific putposes determined by a formal action of the District’s highest level of decision-
making authotity. 'The Boatd is the highest level of decision-making authority for the District
that can approve a commitment of fund balance. The limitation imposed by the commitment
remains in place until a similar action is taken to remove ot revise the limitation, Tn July 2016,

the Board gave its apptoval to commit certain project balances duting the budget process.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification ate intended to be used by the District for
specific purposes but do not meet the ctiteria to be classified as committed. The Board has by
vote authotized the Assistant Superintendent for Finance and the Accounting Supervisot to
assign fund balance. The Board may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating
fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and approptiations in the subsequent
fiscal year’s appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist
temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the
removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to

either remove ot tevise a commitment.

Revenues and Expenditures / Expenses

L

Progtam Revenues
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Amounts reported as program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or
services offeted by the program, and grants and contributions that ate restricted to meeting the
opetational ot capital requirements of a patticular program. All taxes, including those dedicated
fot specific purposes, and other internally dedicated tesources are reported as general revenues
rather than program tevenues. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are
presented as general revenues. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues
identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the

genetal revenues of the District.

State Revenue Sources

Significant revenues from State sources fot cutrent operations include the Florida Education
Finance Progtam administeted by the FDOE under the provisions of Section 1011.62, Florida
Statutes. In accordance with this law, the District determines and reports the number of full-
time equivalent (F1E) students and related data to the FDOE. The FDOE petforms certain
edit checks on the reported number of FIE and related data and calculates the allocation of
funds to the District. The Disttict is permitted to amend its otiginal reporting for a period of
5 months following the date of the original repotting, Such amendments may impact funding
allocations for subsequent fiscal years. The FDOE may also adjust subsequent fiscal petiod
allocations based upon an audit of the District's compliance in determining and repotting FTE
and related data. Notmally, such adjustments are treated as reductions or additions of revenue

in the fiscal year when the adjustments are made.

The State provides financial assistance to administer certain educational programs. SBE tules
require that revenue earmatked for certain programs be expended only for the program for
which the money is provided and require that the money not expended as of the close of the
fiscal year be catried forward into the following fiscal year to be expended for the same
educational programs. The FDOE genetally requires that these educational program revenues
be accounted for in the Genetal Fund. A portion of the fund balance of the General Fund is
restricted in the governmental fund financial statements for the balance of categorical and

earmarked educational program resoutces.

The State allocates gross receipts taxes, generally known as Public Education Capital Outlay
money, to the District on an annual basis. The District is authorized to expend these funds

only upon applying for and receiving an encumbrance authotization from the DOE.

A schedule of revenue from State soutces for the current fiscal year is presented in a subsequent

note.

District Property Taxes

The Boatd is authotized by State law to levy propetty taxes for District school operations,

capital improvements, and debt service.
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Property taxes consist of ad valotem taxes on teal and petsonal property within the District.
Property values are detetmined by the Santa Rosa County Property Appraiser, and property
taxes are collected by the Santa Rosa County Tax Collector.

The Board adopted the 2016 tax levy on September 8, 2016. Tax bills are mailed in October
and taxes ate payable between November 1 of the year assessed and March 31 of the following

yeat at discounts of up to 4 percent for early payment.

Taxes become a lien on the property on ]anuarj 1 and ate delinquent on April 1 of the year
following the year of assessment. State law provides for enforcement of collection of personal
property taxes by seizute of the property to satisfy unpaid taxes and for enforcement of
collection of real property taxes by the sale of interest-beating tax certificates to satisfy unpaid
taxes. The procedures resultin the collection of essentially all taxes prior to June 30 of the yeat

following the year of assessment.

Property tax revenues ate recognized in the government-wide financial statements when the
Board adopts the tax levy. Property tax revenues are recognized in the governmental fund
financial statements when taxes are received by the District except that revenue is accrued for
taxes collected by the Santa Rosa County Tax Collectot at fiscal year-end but not yet remitted
to the District.

Millages and taxes levied for the cuttent year are presented in a subsequent note.

Capital Ouitlay Surtax

In March 2007, the voters of Santa Rosa County approved a one-half cent school capital outlay
surtax on sales in the County for 10 years, effective October 1, 2008, to pay construction costs
of certain school facilities and related costs in accotrdance with Section 212.055(6), Florida
Statutes. In March 2017, Santa Rosa County votets opted to continue the one-half cent school
capita! outlay suttax on sales through December 31, 2028,

Federal Revenue Sources

The District receives Federal awards for the enhancement of various educational programs.
Federal awards are genetally received based on applications submitted to, and approved by,
various granting agencies. For Federal awards in which a claim to these grant proceeds is based
on incurring eligible expenditutes, revenue is recognized to the extent that eligible expenditures

have been incurted.

Compensated Absences

In the government-wide financial statements, compensated absences (i.c., paid absences fot
employee vacation leave and sick leave) ate accrued as liabilities to the extent that it is probable
that the benefits will result in termination payments. A liability for these amounts is reported
in the governmental fund financial statements only if it has matured, such as for occuttences
of employee tesignations and tetitements. The liability for compensated absences includes

salary-related benefits, where applicable.
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7. Proprietary Fund Operating and Nonoperating Revenue and Expenses

'The proprietary fund distinguishes opetating tevenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating tevenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with the proprietaty fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
ptincipal operating revenues of the District’s internal service fand are charges for employee
health insurance premiums. Opetating expenses of the Disttict’s internal service fund include
insurance claims and purchased setvices that includes excess coverage premiums. All revenues

and expenses not meeting this definition ate teported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS

A. Cash Deposits with Financial Institutions

Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits: In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the District’s deposits tmay not be retutned to the District. ‘The District does not have a
policy for custodial credit tisk. All bank balances of the District are fully insured or collateralized
as requited by Chapter 280, Florida Statutes.

B. Investments

The District’s investments have the following maturities:

{nvestments Maturities Fair Valae
SBA:
Blorida PRIME (1) 39 Day Average $ 38,001,195
Debt Service Accounts 6 Months 37,773
Total Investments $ 38,128,968

Notes: (1) This investment is reported as a cash equivalent for financial statement reporting purposcs.

e  Fair Value Measurement

"The District categotizes its fait value measurements within the fait value hietarchy established
by generally accepted accounting psinciples. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs
used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets; Level 2 inputs ate significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are
significant unobsetvable inputs. The investments in the SBA Debt Service Accounts, totaling

$37,772.67, have a level 1 fair value measurement.

o Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the tisk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of

an investment. The District’s investment policy states that the highest priotity shall be given
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to the safety and liquidity of funds. The policy limits the types of authotized investments as a

means of managing its exposure to fair value losses from increasing interest rates.

Florida PRIME uses a weighted average days to matutity (WAM). A portfolio’s WAM reflects
average matutity in days based on final matutity or reset date, in the case of floating rate
instruments. WAM measures the sensitivity of the portfolio to interest rate changes.

For Florida PRIMFE, Section 218.409(8)(a), Flotida Statutes, states that “the principal, and any
part thereof, of each account constituting the trust fund is subject to payment at any time
from the moneys in the trust fund. However, the executive director may, in good faith, on the
occurrence of an event that has a material impact on liquidity ot operations of the trust fund,
for 48 houts limit contributions to ot withdrawals from the trust fund to ensure that the Board
[State Board of Administration] can invest moneys entrusted to it in exercising its fiduciary
responsibility. Such action must be immediately disclosed to all participants, the trustees, the
Joint Legislative Auditing Committee, the Investment Advisory Council, and the Participant
Local Government Advisory Council. The trustees shall convene an emergency .meeting as
soon as practicable from the time the executive ditector has instituted such measures and
teview the necessity of those measures, If the trustees are unable to convene an emergency
meeting before the expitation of the 48-hout moratotivm on contributions and withdrawals,
the moratorium may be extended by the executive director until the trustees are able to meet
to review the necessity for the moratorium. If the trustees agree with such measures, the
trustees shall vote to continue the measures for up to an additional 15 days. The trustees must
convene and vote to continue any such measutes before the expiration of the time limit set,
but in no case may the time Jimit set by the trustees exceed 15 days.” As of June 30, 2017,
there wete no redemption fees ot maximum transaction amounts, ot any other requirements

that serve to limit a participant’s daily access to 100 percent of their account value.

o Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuet or other counterpatty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Section 218.415(17), Florida Statutes, limits investments to the SBA’s Flotida
PRIME, or any intergovernmental investment pool authotized pursuant to the Florida
Interlocal Cooperation Act as provided in Section 163.01, Florida Statutes; Securities and
Exchange Commission tegistered money market funds with the highest credit quality rating
from a nationally recognized rating agency; interest-beating time deposits in qualified public
depositories, as defined in Section 280.02, Flotida Statutes; and direct obligations of the
United States Treasury. The Disttict’s investment policy limits investments to funds placed
in qualified public depositoties, financial deposit instruments insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation, time deposits, securities of the United States Government (including
obligations of the United States Treasury), and investment pools managed and directed by an
approved agency of the State,

The District’s investments in the SBA debt setvice accounts are to provide for debt setvice
payments on bond debt issued by the SBE for the benefit of the District. The District relies
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on policies developed by the SBA for managing interest rate tisk and credit risk for this
account. Disclosutes for the Debt Service Accounts are included in the notes to financial

statements of the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The District’s investment in Flotida PRIME is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s.
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C. Changes in Capital Assets

Changes in capital assets are presented in the table below:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land . ¥ 7,317,360 $ 731,558 $ - b 8,048,918
Land Improvements 5,048,619 409,958 - 5,458,577
Construction in Progress 4,709,108 2,486,971 6,320,568 875,511
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 17,075,087 3,628487 6,320,568 T 14,383,007
Capital Assets Being Depreciaced:
Improvements Cther Than Buildings 25,863,512 1,315,580 415675 26,763,416
Buildings and Fixed Equipment 361,517,635 10,025,801 917,662 370,425,774
Furniture, Fixtures, and Hquipment 16,524,223 1,168477 1,109,914 16,582,786
Moior Vehicles 3,705,308 217510 395,208 3,527,470
Audio Visual Materials and
Computer Software 4917944 23385 542926 4,398 403
Total Capital Asscts Being Depreciated 412,328,622 12,150,613 3,381,385 421,697,849
Less Accumulated Depreciation for!
Improvements Other Than Buildings 16,456,611 907,500 254,820 17,109,291
Buildings and Fixed Equipment 126,869,784 9,219,838 827,586 135,262,036
Furniture, lixtures, and Beuipment 10,817,733 1,339,739 1,004,932 11,152,541
Motor Vehicles 3,232,706 111,120 350056 2993771
Audie Visual Materials and
Computer Softwate 4,427,312 208870 . 514,235 4,121,947
Total Accumulated Depreciation . 161,804,147 11,787,068 2,951,629 170,639,585
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 250,524,475 963,545 429,756 251,058,264

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 267,599,563 $ 4,592,032 $ 6,750,323 $ 265,441,271
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Function Amount

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Instruction $ 272,658
Student Support Services ' 10,409
Instructional Media Secvices 6,695
Instruction and Curdaulum Development Setrvices 2,851
Instmctional Staff Training Services 9,308
Instruction Related ‘Technology 663,028
General Administration 425
School Administration 4,191
Piscal Services 1,705
Food Services 76,269
Central Services 24,185
Pupil Transportation Services 10,764
Operation of Plant 6,219
Maintenance of Plant 1,900,657
Administeative Technology Services 66,830
Community Services 17,122
Unallocated 8,713,770
"Total Depredation Expense - Governmental Adivities § 11.787,068

Retitement Plans

FRS — Defined Benefit Pension Plans

General Information about the FRS

The RS was created in Chapter 121, Flotida Statutes, to provide a defined benefit pension plan
for participating public employees. The FRS was amended in 1998 to add the Deferred Retitement
Option Program (DROP) under the defined benefit plan and amended in 2000 to provide a defined
contribution plan alternative to the defined benefit plan for FRS members effective July 1, 2002.
This integrated defined contribution pension plan is the FRS Investment Plan. Chapter 112,
Flotida Statutes, established the Retiree HIS Program, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan, to assist retired membets of any State-administered retirement system in

paying the costs of health insurance.

Essentially all regular employees of the District are eligible to enroll as members of the State-
administered FRS. Provisions relating to the FRS ate established by Chapters 121 and 122, Florida
Statutes; Chapter 112, Past IV, Flotida Statutes; Chapter 238, Florida Statutes; and FRS Rules,
Chapter 60S, Flotida Administrative Code; wherein eligibility, contributions, and benefits are
defined and desctibed in detail. Such provisions may be amended at any time by further action
from the Flotida Legislature. ‘The FRS is a single retirement system administered by the Florida
Department of Management Setvices, Division of Retirement, and consists of two cost-shating
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multiple-employer defined benefit plans and other nonintegrated programs. A comptehensive
annual financizl report of the FRS, which includes its financial statements, required supplementary
information, actuarial teport, and other relevant information, is available from the Florida
Department of Management Services” web site (www.dms.myflorida.com).

The District’s FRS and HIS pension expense totaled §14,647,147 for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2017.

FRS Pension Plan

Plan Desgription. The FRS Pension Plan (Plan) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan, with a DROP for eligible employees. The general classes of membership are as

follows:

» Regular Class — Members of the FRS who do not qualify for membership in the other

classes.

e Flected County Officers Class — Members who hold specified elective offices in local

government.

Employees enrolled in the Plan priot to July 1, 2011, vest at 6 years of creditable service and
employees entolled in the Plan on or after July 1, 2011, vest at 8 years of creditable service. All
vested members, enrolled prior to July 1, 2011, ate eligible for normal retirement benefits at age 62
ot at any age after 30 yeats of service. All membets entolled in the Plan on or after July 1, 2011,
once vested, ate eligible for normal retitement benefits at age 65 or any time after 33 yeats of
creditable setvice. Fmployees enrolled in the Plan may include up to 4 years of credit for military
setvice towatd creditable setvice. The Plan also includes an eatly retirement provision; howevet,
there is 2 benefit reduction for each year a member tetites befote his or her normal retirement date.
The Plan provides retirement, disability, death benefits, and annual cost-of-living adjustments to
cligible patticipants.

DROP, subject to provisions of Section 121.091, Florida Statutes, permits employees eligible for
normal retirement undet the Plan to defer receipt of monthly benefit payments while continuing
employment with an FRS participating employer. An employee may participate in DROP for a
period not to exceed 60 months after electing to participate, except that certain instructional
petsonnel may patticipate for up to 96 months. Duting the period of DROP participation, deferred
monthly benefits are held in the FRS T'rust Fund and accrue intetest. The net pension liability does
not include amounts for DROP participants, as these membets ate consideted retired and are not

accruing additional pension benefits.

Benefitr Provided. Benefits under the Plan are computed on the basis of age and/or years of service,
average final compensation, and service credit. Credit for each year of service is expressed as a
percentage of the average final compensation. For members initially enrolled before July 1, 2011,
the average final compensation is the average of the 5 highest fiscal years’ earnings; for members

initially enrolled on ot after July 1, 2011, the avetage final compensation is the average of the 8
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highest fiscal years’ earnings. The total petcentage value of the benefit received is determined by
calculating the total value of all service, which is based on the retirement class to which the member
belonged when the setvice ctedit was eatned. Members are eligible for in-line-of-duty or regular
disability and sutvivots” benefits. The following chart shows the percentage value for each year of

service credit earned:

Class, Initial Enrollment, and Retirement Age/Years of Service Percent Value

Regular Class members initially enrolled before July 1, 2011

Retirement up to age 62 or up to 30 years of service 1.60
Retirement at age 63 or with 31 years of service 1.63
Retirement at age 64 or with 32 years of service 1.65
Retitement at age 65 oz with 33 or more years of setvice 1.68

Regular Class membets initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011

Retirement up to age 65 or up to 33 years of service 1.60
Retitement at age 66 or with 34 years of service 1.63
Retirement at age 67 or with 35 years of service 1.65
Retirement at age 68 or with 36 or more years of service 1.68
Elected County Officers 3.00

As provided in Section 121.101, Florida Statutes, if the member is initially enrolled in the FRS
befote July 1, 2011, and all service credit was accrued before July 1, 2011, the annual cost-of-living
adjustment is 3 petcent per year. If the member is initially enrolled before July 1, 2011, and has
setvice credit on ot after July 1, 2011, thete is an individually calculated cost-of-living adjustment.
The annual cost-of-living adjustment is a proportion of 3 percent determined by dividing the sum
of the pre-July 2011 setvice credit by the total setvice credit at retirement multiplied by 3 percent.
Plan members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, will not have a cost-of-living adjustment

after retirement.
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Contributions, The Florida Legislature establishes conttibution rates for participating employers and
employees. Conitibution rates during the 2016-17 fiscal year were as follows:
Percent of Gross Salary

Class Employee Emplover (1)
FRS, Regular 3.00 7.52
FRS, Elected County Officers 3.00 42.47
DROP - Applicable to

Members from All of the Above Classes . 0.00 12.99
FRS, Reemployed Retitee " ©® o

r

Notes: (1) Employer rates include 1.66 percent for the postemployment health insurance subsidy.
Also, employer rates, other than for DROP participants, include 0.06 percent for
administrative costs of the Investment Plan.

L ; ; ; ; ; R
¢2) Contribution sates are dependent upon retirement class in which reémployed.

The District’s contributions to the Plan totaled $6,898,970 for the fiscal yeat ended June 30, 2017,

DPension 1 iabilities, Pension Eiscpense, and Daferred Outflows of Resonrces and Deferved Inflows of Resourves Related
1o Pensions. At June 30, 2017, the District reported a liability of $71,699,838 for its proportionate
shate of the Plan’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016,
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuatial valuation as of July 1, 2016. The District’s propottionate share of the net pension liability
was based on the District’s 2016-2017 fiscal year contributions relative to the 2015-2016 fiscal year
conttibutions of all participating members. At June 30, 2016, the District’s proportionate share was
0.283958872 percent, which was a decrease of 0.008782281 from its proportionate share measured
as of June 30, 2015,

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized Plan pension expense of
$10,606,778. [n addition, the District reported deferred outflows of resoutces and deferred inflows

of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
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' iDeferred Outflows ‘Deferred inflows

‘Description . ofResources ' of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 5489801 % . 667,574

Change of assumptions L 4,337,626 -
‘Netdifference between projected and actual e o
__earnings on FRS pension plan investments ... 18,533,534

‘Changes in proportion and differences between ‘ |

. District FRS contributions and proportionate & , ,
share ofcontributions . 2671560 1962217,
:Dlstri_ct FRS contributions subsequentto the | B o : :
: measurement date 6,898,570

Total | LS 35,527,177 | $ 2,629,791

The defetred outflows of tesoutces telated to pensions resulting from District contributions to the
Plan subsequent to the measutement date, totaling §6,898,970, will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resoutces and deferred inflows of resoutces related to pensions will be recognized in

pension expense as follows:

‘Fiscal Year Ending June 30 | n Amount
2018 .. $3581,153.
009 L 3581158
2020 10364416
2020 i 709332
12022 i 10333
‘Thereafter | L 335,032
Total i ., $25098416

Adtuarial Asswmptions, 'The total pension liability in the July 1, 2016 actuarial valuation was

determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

measureinent:

Inflation 2.00 percent

Salaty Increases 3.25 percent, average, including inflation

Investment rate of return 7.60 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation
Morttality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2016, valuation were based on the results of an
actuatial experience study for the petiod July 1, 2008, through June 30, 2013.

The long-term expected rate of retutn on pension plan investments was not based on historical

returns, but instead is based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The allocation
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policy’s desctiption of each asset class was used to map the tatget allocation to the asset classes
shown below. Fach asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions,
and includes an adjustment for the inflation assumption, The target allocation and best estimates

of arithmetic and geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summatized in the

following table:
Compound
Annual ‘ Annual

“TargetAllocation|  Arithmetic  (Geometric) = Standard
Asset Class : [§] ; Return Return Deviation
Cash b 10% 30% . 30% L%
Fixedlncome [ 180% AT AB% 4.6%-
GlobalEquity . 53.0% 81%: 8% 17.2%:
Real Estate (Property) | 100%  64% . 5B% 12.0%
Private Equity 1 80% _ 115% 7.8% 30.0%.
Strategic Investments o 12.0%: - 61% 5.6% 11.1%
Total : 100.00%!
Assumed inflation - Mean o o 2.6% o 7 1.9%

Note: {1) As outlined in the Plan's investment policy.

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.60 percent. The
Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of cutrent active and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the

total pension liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of return.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Position I sability to Changes in the Discount Rats, The
following presents the District’s proportionate shate of the net pension liability calculated using the

discount rate of 7.60 percent, as well as what the Disttict’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 petcentage-point lower (6.60
percent) ot 1 percentage-point higher (8.60 percent) than the cutrent rate;

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
{6.60%) {7.60%%) (8.60%)

District’s propottionate share of
the net pension liability (asset) $132,004,256 $71,699,838 $21,504,374
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pasizion. Detailed information about the Plan’s fiduciary net position is

available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State Administered Systems
Comptehensive Annual Financial Repott.

HIS Pension Plan

Plan_Deseriptior. The HIS Pension Plan (HIS Plan) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan established under section 112.363, Flotida Statutes, and may be amended by
the Florida Legislature at any time. The benefit is a monthly payment to assist retirees of State-
administered retitement systems in paying their health insurance costs and is administered by the

Flotida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement.

Benefits Provided. Fot the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, cligible retirees and beneficiaries teceived
a monthly HIS payment of $5 for each year of creditable service completed at the time of
tetitement, with a minimum HIS payment of $30 and a maximum HIS payment of $150 pet month,
pursuant to Section 112.363, Florida Statutes. To be eligible to receive a HIS Plan benefit, a retitee
under 2 State-administered retitement system must provide proof of health insurance coverage,
which may include Federal Medicate.

Contributions, The HIS Plan is funded by requited contributions from FRS participating employers
as sct by the Florida Legistatute. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation
for all active FRS members. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the conttibution rate was 1.66
percent of payroll pursuant to section 112.363, Florida Statutes. The Disttict contributed 100
petcent of its statutorily required contributions for the current and preceding 3 years. HIS Plan
contributions are deposited in a separate trust fund from which payments are authorized. HIS Plan
benefits are not guatanteed and ate subject to annual legislative approptiation. In the event the
legislative approptiation or available funds fail to provide full subsidy benefits to all patticipants,

benefits may be teduced or canceled.
The District’s contsibutions to the HIS Plan totaled $2,003,926 for the fiscal year June 30, 2017,

Pension Liabilities, Pansion Fxcpense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resonrees Related
fo Pensions. At June 30, 2017, the District reported a net pension lability of $46,366,688 for its
proportionate share of the HIS Plan’s net pension liability. The current portion of the new pension

liability is the District’s propottionate shate of benefit payments expected to be paid within 1 year,
net of the District’s proportionate shate of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position available to pay
that amount. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was detetmined by an actuarial valuation as of July
1, 2016. ‘The District’s propottionate shate of the net pension liability was based on the District’s
2015-16 fiscal year contributions telative to the total 2015-16 fiscal year contributions of all
patticipating membegs. At June 30, 2016, the District’s proportionate shate was 0.397840722
percent, which was an increase of 0.020003522 from its proportionate share measured as of June
30, 2015.
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For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized the HIS pension expense of
$4,040,368. In addition, the Disttict teported defetted outflows of resources and deferred inflows

of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

' j'Derf'e'n;éd Outflows ‘Deferred Inflows

-Description ; of Resources f of Resources
Differences between expected andactual ' $ - $ 105606
. experience ‘ . . 7 . :
Change of assumptions - 7,276,112 - - -7.
Net difference between projected and actual S 7 '
. eamings on HIS pension plan investments - o 23444 0 T :
(Changes in proportion and differences between | }

 District HIS contributions and proportionate | : _

; share of HIS contributions e 1,817,547 | .. 370,596
é.DiS_t"iCt contributions subsequenttothe & T

" measurement date ! 2,003,926 -
Total ey 10,921,029 | ¢ 476,202

The defetted outflows of resoutces related to pensions resulting from Disirict conteibutions to the
HIS Plan subsequent to the measurement date, totaling $2,003,926, will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, Other amounts reported
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be

recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 | 3N Amount
008 . $1511478
2019 - 1,511,478
2021 , R ) . 1,503,726
2022 .. i 1300950
‘Thereafter 1,107,028

Total B . $8,440,901
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Adtuarial Assumptions, The total pension lability in the July 1, 2016 actuatial valuation was

determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

mezasurement:

Inflation 2.60 percent

Salary increases 3.25 petcent, average, including inflation
Municipal bond rate 2.85 percent

Mottality rates wete based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projected Scale BB.

While an expetience study had not been completed for the HIS Plan, the actuarial assumptions that
determined the total pension liability for the HIS Plan wete based on certain results of the most

recent experience study fot the FRS plan.

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 2.85 percent. In
general, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the single rate
equivalent to discounting at the long-tetm expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the
projected depletion date. Because the HIS benefit is essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go basis,
the depletion date is considered to be immediate, and the single equivalent discount rate is equal to
the municipal bond rate selected by the HIS Plan sponsot. The Bond Buyer General Obligation
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index was adopted as the applicable municipal bond index.

Sensitivity of the District’s Prapartionate Share of the Net Pension I iability to Changes in the Discount Rate. The
following presents the District’s proportionate shate of the net pension liability calculated using the

discount rate of 2.85 petcent, as well as what the District’s ptoportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lowes (1.85
percent) ot 1 percentage-point higher (3.85) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(1.85%) (2.85%) {3.85%)
District’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability $37,966,601 $33,094,230 $29,050,429

Pension Plan Fidugiary Net Position. Detailed information about the HIS Plan’s fiduciary net position

is available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State Administered Systems
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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FRS — Defined Contribution Pension Plan

The SBA administers the defined contribution plan officially titled the FRS Investment Plan
(Investment Plan). The Investment Plan is repotted in the SBA’s annual financial statements and
in the State of Florida Comprehensive Aanual Financial Report.

As provided in Section 121.4501, Flotida Statutes, eligible FRS members may elect to patticipate in
the Investment Plan in licu of the FRS defined benefit plan. District employees participating in
DROP are not eligible to participate in the Investment Plan. Employer and employee contributions,
including amounts conttibuted to individual membet’s accounts, ate defined by law, but the
ultimate benefit depends in patt on the petformance of investment funds. Retirement benefits are
based upon the value of the membet’s account upon retirement. Benefit terms, including
conttibution requitements, for the Investment Plan are established and may be amended by the
Flotida Legislatute. The Investment Plan is funded with the same employet and employee
conttibution rates that are based on salaty and membetship class (Regular Class, Elected County
Officers, etc.), as the FRS defined benefit plan. Contributions ate directed to individual membet
accounts, and the individual members allocate contributions and account balances among various
approved investment choices. Costs of administering the Tnvestment Plan, including the FRS
Financial Guidance Program, are funded through an employer contribution of 0.04 percent of
payroll and by forfeited benefits of plan membets. Allocations to the Investment Plan members’
accounts duting the 2016-2017 fiscal year wete as follows:

Percent of
Gross
Class Compensation
ERS, Regular 6.30
FRS, Elected County Officers 11.34

For all membership classes, employees are immediately vested in their own contributions and are
vested after 1 year of service for employer contributions and investment earnings, regardless of
membership class. If an accumulated benefit obligation fot setvice credit osiginally earned under
the FRS Pension Plan is transferred to the Investment Plan, the member must have the years of
service required for FRS Pension Plan vesting (including the service credit represented by the
transferred funds) to be vested for these funds and the earnings on the funds. Nonvested employer
contributions are placed in a suspense account for up to 5 years. If the employee returns to FRS-
covered employment within the 5-year period, the employee will regain control over theit account.
If the employee does not teturn within the 5-year period, the employee will forfeit the accumulated
account balance. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the information for the amount of
forfeitutes was unavailable from the SBA; however, management believes that these amounts, if
any, would be immaterial to the District.
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After termination and applying to receive benefits, the member may rollover vested funds to
another qualified plan, structure a periodic payment under the Investment Plan, receive a lump-
sum distribution, leave the funds invested for future distribution, or any combination of these
options. Disability coverage is provided; the member may either transfer the account balance to the
FRS Pension Plan when apptoved for disability tetitement to receive guaranteed lifetime monthly
benefits undet the FRS Pension Plan, ot temain in the Investment Plan and rely upon that account

balance for retirement income.

The District’s Investment Plan pension expense totaled $1,814,840 for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2017.

Other Postemployment Benefit Obligations

Plan Description. The Other Postemployment Benefits Plan (OPEB Plan) is a single-employer
defined benefit plan administered by the District. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 112.0801,
Flotida Statutes, employees who retite from the District are eligible to patticipate in the District’s
health and hospitalization plan for medical, ptescription drug, dental, and life insurance coverage.
The District subsidizes the premium tfates paid by tetitees by allowing them to patticipate in the
OPEB Plan at reduced ot hlended group (implicitly subsidized) premium rates for both active and
retited employees. These rates provide an implicit subsidy for retirees because, on an actuarial
basis, their current and futute claims are expected to result in higher costs to the OPEB Plan on
avetage than those of active employees. The District does not offer any explicit subsidies for retiree
coverage. Retirces are assumed to enroll in the Federal Medicare program for their primary
covetage as soon as they are eligible. 'The OPEB Plan does not issue a stand-alone repott, and it is

not inchuded in the teport of a public employee retirernent system or another entity.

Funding Policy. Plan conitibution requirements of the District and OPEB Plan members are
established and may be amended through Board action. The District has not advance-funded ot
established a funding methodology for the annual OPEB costs ot the net OPEB obligation, and
the OPEB Plan is financed on a pay-as-you-po basis. For the 2016-17 fiscal year, 277 retitees
received other postemployment benefits. For the 2016-17 fiscal year, the District provided required
contributions of $804,091 toward the annual OPEB cost, net of retiree contributions totaling
$1,825,305, which represents 1.7 petcent of covered payroll.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The Disttict’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is
calculated based on the annual tequited contribution (ARC), a0 amount actuarially determined in
accordance with parametets of GASB Statement No. 45, Acounting and Finansial Reporting by
Employers for Postemplayment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The ARC represents a level of funding that

if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to covet normal cost each yeat and amorttize any unfunded

actuatial liabilities over a petiod not to exceed 30 years. The following table shows the District's
annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year, the amount actually contributed to the OPEB Plan, and
changes in the District's net OPEB obligation:
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Description Amount
Normal Cost {service cost for 1 year) $ 1,237,557
Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial

Accrued Liability 1,101,589
Annual Required Contribution 2,339,146
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 202,121
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (303,906)
Annual OPEB Cost (Expense) 2,237,361
Contribution Toward the OPEB Cost 804,091}
Increase in Net OPIEB Obligation : 1,433,270
Net OPEB Obligation, Beginning of Year 5,053,019
Net OPEB CObligation, IEnd of Year $ 6,486,289

The District’s annual OPEB cost, the petcentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the OPEB
Plan, and the net OPEB obligation as of June 30, 2017, and the 2 preceding fiscal years were as

follows:

Percentage of

Annunal Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB

Fiscal Year OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2014-13 $ 1,257,923 49.7% $ 4,391,485
2015-16 ¥ 1,280,973 48.4% $ 5,053,019
2016-17 $ 2,237,361 35.9% $ 6,486,289

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of July 1, 2016, the most recent valuation date, the
actuatial accrued liability for benefits was $18,596,008, and the actuarial value of assets was 0,
tesulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $18,596,008 and a funded ratio of 0 percent.
The covered payroll (annual payroll of active patticipating employees) was $107,866,360, and the
ratio of the unfunded actuatial accrued liability to the covered payroll was 17.2 petcent.

Actuatial valuations of an ongoing OPEB Plan involve estimates of the value of teported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occuttence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment and termination, mottality, and healthcare cost trends.
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the OPEB Plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer atre subject to continual revision as actual results ate c';ompa.red with
past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The Schedule of Funding Progress
immediately following the notes to financial statements as required. supplementary information,
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of the OPEB Plan assets is

increasing ot decreasing ovet dme telative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
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Actuatial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial repotting pusposes

ate based on the substantive OPEB Plan provisions, as understood by the employer and
participating members, and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and
the historical pattetn of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and participating members.
The actuatial calculations of the OPEB Plan teflect 2 long-tetm prospective. Consistent with this
perspective, the actuatial valuations used actuarial methods and assumptions that include
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term voladlity in actuatial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.

The District’s OPEB actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2016, used the entry age normal level
petcentage of pay cost method to estimate the unfunded actuarial liability as of June 30, 2017, and
to estimate the District’s 2016-2017 fiscal year ARC. Because the OPEB liability is curtently
unfunded, the actuarial assumptions included 2 4 percent rate of feturn on invested assets. The
actuarial assumptions also included an inflation rate of 3 petcent per year, 2 payroll growth rate of
0 percent pet yeat, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8.75 petcent for the 2016-2017 fiscal
yeat, reduced petiodically thereafter to an ultimate rate of 4 percent in fiscal year 2073. The
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized using a level dollar amount on a closed basis
over a 30-year petiod.

F. Construction and Other Significant Commitments

Encumbrances. Apptopriations in governmental fund types are encumbered upon issuance of
putchase orders for goods and services. Even though appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal
yeat, unfilled putchase orders of the current year are carried forward and the next yeat's

apptoptiations are likewise encumbered.

The following is a schedule of encumbrances at June 30, 2017:

Major Funds

Capital
Piojects - Capital Nonmajor Total
Local Capital Projects - Governmenta  Governmental
General Improvement Other 1 Funds Funds
§ 604,898 ¥ 582,500 $ 3,104,465 $ 215,926 $ 4,507,788

Construction Contracts. Encumbrances include the following major construction contract

commitment at fiscal year-end:

Contract Completed Balance
Project Amount to Daie Committed
Chumuckla Elementaty - Primary Classrooms/Tab/ESE Addition k] 1,321,003 $ 167,565 § 1,153,438
Locklin Tech & IR Jackson - Paving & Drainage Improvements 978,170 111,730 866,440
Sims Middle - Kitchen Expansion/Renovation & Classroom Additions 1,361,593 622,259 739,333

$ 3,660,766 )3 901,554 § 2,759,211
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Risk Management Programs

The District is exposed to vatious tisks of loss telated to totts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuties to employees; and natural disasters. The District limits its
exposure to these tisks through its membership in the Florida School Boatd Insurance Trust
(Ttust). The Trustis a self-insurance fund of Florida school boards established under the authority
set forth in Section 1001.42, Flotida Statutes, and was established for the purpose of pooling certain
exposures (e.g. property, casualty, and wotkets’ compensation) of participating districts. If a
participating district withdraws or terminates patticipation in the Trust, and its claims exceed loss
fund contributions from premiums paid, the Trust may request additional funds or retutn the open
claims to that district. Through its participation in the Trust, the District has acquired vatious types
of insurance coverage including propetty, general and automotive liability, workers’ compensation,
errors and omissions, employee benefits liability, boiler and machinety, ctime, special events,
pollution, legal liability, school crisis isk, and cyber liability coverage. Catasttophic student
accident, flood and storage tank liability insurance are provided through purchased commetcial

insurance,

The District provides self-insured employee health and hospitalization coverage. The District
enteted into an agreement with a stop loss insurance company to provide specific excess coverage
of claim amounts above $150,000 on an individual claim basis and aggregate monthly excess
covetape of approximately $1.3 million. Aggregate excess coverage is paid out when total claims
annually, minus specific excess coverage, exceed 100% of the ovetall variable claims cost. The
District has contracted with an insurance administrator to administer these self-insurance
progtams, including the processing, investigating, and payment of claims. A liability in the amount
of $2,100,253 was actuatially determined to cover estimated incurred, but not reported, insurance
claitms payable at June 30, 2017.

Dental, vision, long-term disability, and life insurance coverage are provided thtough commercial

insurance.

Ptior to July 1, 1997, the District was self-insuted for workers’ compensation exposutes up to
specified limits. At June 30, 2017, a liability in the amount of $239,444 was recorded to cover future

claitns payments relating to this former self-insurance program.

Settled claims resulting from the risks described above have not exceeded commetcial insurance

coverage in any of the past 3 fiscal years.
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The following schedule represents the changes in claims liability for the past 2 fiscal years for the

District’s former and cuttent self-insurance programs:

Current-Year

Beginning-of- Claims and Balance at
Fiscal-Year Changes in Claims Fiscal

Fiscal Year Liability Estimates Payments Year-End
Workers Compensation:
2015-16 § 253,277 $ 109,206 b) (122,718) $ 239,765
2016-17 239,765 22,577 (22,898) 239,444
Employee Health:
2015-16 $ 1,835,665 $ 12,448,635 $ (12,384,610) $ 1,899,690
2016-17 1,899,690 (14,008,526) 14,209,089 2,100,253

H. Long-Term Liabilities

1.

Certificates of Participation

The District has entered into financing arrangements with the Santa Rosa School Board Leasing
Cotpotation (Leasing Cotporation) putsuant to which the District authotized several
cettificates of patticipation debt issues, which ate characterized as lease-purchase agreements.
The following schedule describes the status of these issues at June 30, 2017:

Criginal Principal Principal  Refunded by
Scries Amount Paid to Date Refunded Series Balance
2006-1 $12,370,000 $6,885,000 $5,485,000 2014 3 0.00
2006-2 18,870,000 16,150,000 2014 2,720,000
2009 12,585,000 4,945,000 7,640,000
2014 20,520,000 290,000 20,230,000
Total $30,590,000

As a condition of the financing arrangement, the District has given ground leases on District
property to the Leasing Corpotation. The ground lease on the propetties associated with the
Series 2006 Certificates ends on the earlier of (2) the date on which the 2006 Certificates and
any seties of certificates refunding the Series 2006 Certificates have been paid in full ot
provision for their payment has been made, ot (b) 10 years from the final maturity of the Series
2006 Certificates and any series of certificates refunding the Series 2006 Certificates. Lt is not
expected that the ground lease term with respect to the properties associated with the Series
2006 Certificates will exceed April 13, 2046. The lease payments ate payable by the District
semiannually, on February 1 and August 1 at intefest rates of 4.34 percent for the Series 2006-
1 and 4.25 percent to 5.25 percent for the Series 2006-2 Certificates.

The ground lease on the properties associated with the Series 2009 Certificates ends on the
eatlier of (a) the date on which the Series 2009 Cettificates have been paid in full or provision

for their payment has been made, or (b) 10 yeats from the final maturity date of the Series 2009
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Certificates and any series of certificates refunding the Seties 2009 Certificates. The lease
payments are payable by the District semiannually, on February 1 and August 1 at intetest rates

of 4.11 percent for the Series 2009 Certificates.

The ground lease on the properties associated with the Series 2014 Certificates ends on the
eatlier of (a} the date on which the Seties 2014 Cettificates have been paid in full or provision
for their payment has been made, ot {b) 10 yeats from the final maturity date of the Seties 2014
Certificates and any seties of cestificates refunding the Series 2014 Certificates. 1t is not
expected that the ground lease term with respect to the properties associated with the Seties
2014 Certificates will exceed February 01,2031, The lease payments are payable by the District
semiannually, on Februaty 1 and August 1 at interest rates ranging from 2 percent to 5 percent
for the Series 2014 Certificates. The Series 2014 Cettificates were issued to refund the
Refunded Certificates and theteby refinance a portion of the cost of acquisition, construction
and installation of the Consolidated 2006 Project as well as to pay costs associated with the

issuance of the Series 2014 Certificates.

The properties coveted by the ground leases are, together with the improvements constructed
thereon from the financing proceeds, leased back to the District. 1f the District fails to tenew
the leases and to provide for the rent payments through to term, the master lease-purchase

agreement provides for several remedies that are available to the Leasing Cotporation.

The District properties included in the gtound leases under these arrangements include:

Seties 2006 (as amended) and 2014:
e Navarre High School — Gymnasium, Classtrooms and Maintenance Building
e Navatte High School — Cafetetia Expansion, Fieldhouse and North Wing Addition
e Thomas L. Sims Middle School — Classtoom Spaces and Accoutrements
¢ Bennett C. Russell Elementary School

o  Woodlawn Beach Middle Schoot — Classtoom Additions
Seties 2009;

e Jay High _School — Improvements

o  Central High School — Improvements
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The following is a schedule by fiscal years of future minimum lease payments under the lease

agreement together with the present value of minimum lease payments as of June 30:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Total Principal Interest

2018 $ 3,376,954 $ 2,035,000 1,341,954
2019 3,378,647 2,120,000 1,258,647
2020 3,370,351 2,205,000 1,165,351
2021 3,371,441 2,310,000 1,061,441
2022 3,343,138 2,390,000 953,138
2023-2027 14,482,616 11,430,000 3,052,616
2028-2031 8,767,769 8,100,000 667,769
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 40,090,914 b3 30,590,000 % 9,500,914
Plus: Unamortized Premium 2,252,054 2,252,054 -
‘Total Certificates of Participation $ 42,342,968 $ 32,842,054 3 9,500,914

2, Bonds Payable
Bonds payable at June 30, 2017, ate as follows:

Amount Interest Rates Annual Maturity
Bond Type QOutistanding {Percent) To
State School Bonds:
Series 2009A, Refunding $ 100,000 5 2019
Series 201CA ' 910,000 35-5 2030
Series 20114, Refunding 255,000 3-5 2023
Serics 2014A, Refunding 257,000 3.5 2025
Series 2014B, Refunding 131,000 2-5 2020
Series 2017A, Refunding 162,000 5 2026
Bonds Payable 1,815,000
Plus: Unamortized Premium 217,661
Total Bonds Payable $ 2,032,661
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The various bonds wete issued to finance capital outlay projects of the District. The following
is a description of the bonded debt issues:

¥ State School Bonds

These bonds are issued by the SBE on behalf of the District. ‘The bonds mature serially
and are secured by a pledge of the Disttict’s portion of the State-assessed motor vehicle
license tax. The State’s full faith and credit is also pledged as security for these bonds.
Principal and interest payments, investment of debt service fund resoutces, and

compliance with reserve requirements ate administered by the SBE and the SBA.
» District Revenue Bonds

These bonds are authotized by Chapter 73-616, Laws of Flotida, which provides that the
bonds be secuted from the pari-mutuel tax proceeds distributed annually to Santa Rosa
County from the State’s Pari-Mutuel Tax Collection Trust Fund pursuant to Chapter 550,
Flotida Statutes {effective July 1, 2000, tax proceeds are distributed pursuant to Section
212.20(6)(d)7.a., Florida Statutes (2001}, now Section 212.20(6)(d)6.a,, Flotida Statutes).
The annual distribution is remitted by the Florida Department of Financial Setvices to
the District. As required by the bond resolution, the District has established the sinking
fund and reserve account and has accumulated and maintained adequate resources in the

sinking fund and reserve accournt.

Duting the 2016-17 fiscal year, the Disttict recognized pari-mutuel tax revenues totaling
$223,250 and expended $196,085 (88 petcent) of these revenues for debt setvice directly
collateralized by these revenues. The debt of the pledged pari-mutuel tax revenues
matured on August 1, 2016.

Annual requirements to amottize all bonded debt outstanding as of June 30, 2017, are as

follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Total Principal Interest
State School Bonds:

2018 § 350,579 270,000 80,579
2019 250,905 184,000 66,905
2020 207,155 149,000 58,155
2021 200,095 149,000 51,095
2022 206,645 163,000 43,645
2023-2027 737,935 615,000 122,935
2028-2030 308,200 285,000 23,200

Total State Schocl Bonds § 2,261,514 § 1,815,000 $ 446,514
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3. Defeased Debt

The FDOE issued Capital Outlay Refunding Bonds, Series 2017A, dated April 27, 2017, with
interest rates ranging from 3 to 5 percent. The District’s pro rata share of net proceeds totaling
$186,601, along with other monies, was placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for future debt
setvice payments. As a tresult, $185,000 of the State School Bonds ate considered to be in-
substance defeased and the liability for these bonds has been removed from the government

wide-financial statements.

4, Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a summaty of changes in long-term liabilities:

Beginning Ending Dueln
Description Balance Additons Deductions Balance One Year
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Certificates of Participation Payable $ 32625000 % - $ 2035000 % 30,590,000 § 2,035,000
Unamortized Premium on Certificates 2,529,881 - 271,827 2,252,054 277,827
Total Certificates of Participation Payable 55,154,381 - 2,512,827 32,842,054 2,312,827
Bonds Payable 2,492,000 162,000 839,000 1,815,000 270,000
Unamortized Premium on Bonds 220,852 24,601 27,792 217,661 31,563
"l'atal Bonds Payable 2,712,852 186,601 866,792 2,032,661 301,563
Compensated Absences Payable 19,929,847 6,751,561 7,357,304 19,324,124 5,609,837
Net Pension Liablility } 76,344,897 63,345,477 21,623,847 118,066,527
Other Postemployment Benefits Payable 5,053,019 2,231,561 804,091 6,486,280
Total Governmental Activities § 139,195,516 § 72520999 $ 32,964,860 $ 178,751,654 $ 8,224,226

For the governmental activities, compensated absences, pensions, and othet postemployment
benefits ate generally liquidated with resoutces of the General Fund. The estimated insurance
claims ate generaily liquidated with resoutces of the internal service funds.

I. Fund Balance Reporting

Tn addition to committed and assigned fund balance categoties discussed in the Fund Balance

Policies note disclosure, fund balances may be classified as follows:

» Nonspendable Fund Balance. Nosnspendable fund balance is the net current financial

tesources that cannot be spent because they are either notin spendable form or are legally
ot contractually required to be maintained intact. Generally, not in spendable form

tneans that an item is not expected to be converted to cash.

Restricted Fund Balance. Restricted fund balance is the portion of fund balance on

which constraints have been placed by creditots, grantors, contributors, laws ot

regulations of other governments, constitutional provisions, ot enabling legislation.
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Restricted fund balance places the most binding level of constraint on the use of fund
balance.

o Unassigned Fund Balance. The unassigned fund balance is the portion of fund
balance that is the residual classification for the General Fund, This balance reptesents
amounts that have not been assigned to other funds and that have not been restricted,

committed, or assigned for specific purposes.
J. Revenues

1. Schedule of State Revenue Sources

The following is a schedule of the District’s State tevenue sources for the 2016-17 fiscal year:

Sources Amount

Florida Education Finance Program $ 109,439,222
Categorical Education Program - Class Size Recuction 28,808,199
Wotkforce Development Program 2,192,881
Florida Best and Brightest Scholarship Program 1,397,467
School Recognition 1,079,583
Mator Vehicle License Tax (Capital Outlay and Delt Service) 1,018,044
Gross Receipts Tax {Public Bducation Capital Quilay) 709,661
Voluntary Prekindergarten Program ' 505,376
Discretionary Lottery Funds 438,844
Food Service Supplement 109,193
Charter School Capital Outlay 65,027
Mobile Home License Tax 29,835
Miscellaneous 621,428
Total $ 146,414,760

Accounting policies relating to certain State tevenue sources are described in Note LG.2.

2. Property Taxes

The following is a2 summaty of millages and taxes levied on the 2016 tax roll for the 2016-17
fiscal year:
Millages Taxes Levied

General Fund

Nonvoted School Tax:
Required Local Effort 4,692 ¥ 44,147,615
Basic Discretionatry Local Effort 0.748 7,038,026

Capital Projects - Local Capital Improvement Fund

Nonvoted Tax:
Local Capital Improvements 1.400 13,172,775

Total 6.840 $ 64,358,416
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K. Interfund Transfers

The following is a summary of interfund transfers reported in the fund financial statements:

Interfund
Funds Transfers In Transfers Qut
Major:
Gencral $ 5,302,565 $ 3,319,026
Capital Projects:
Local Capital Improvement - 6,615,515
Other - 2,154,947
Nonmajor Governunental 3,788,153 1,230
Internal Service 3,000,000 -
Total - $ 12,090,717 $ 12,090,717

The District made ttansfets to the General Fund to cover payments on the student
transportation contract, to pay for certain property and casualty insurance ptemiums, to cover
payments for computet upgtades, to facilitate the transfer of State funds to its chartes schools,
to pay for network infrastructure, and to pay contractual pagments for tennis courts usage.
The Distict made transfers to the nonmajor governmental funds to facilitate debt setvice
payments on cettificates of participation and to cover the District’s portion of Reserve Officer
Training Cotps. The District made transfers to the internal setvice fund to establish an adequate

net position for its self-insutance program and to cover increases in insurance preminms.
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN

Actuatial Actuarial Value Adtuarial Unfunded TFunded Ratio Coveved Payroll UAALasa
Valuation of Assets Acocued AAT (UAAL)Y r (2 Percentage of
Date Liability (AALY - (1) Covered Payroll
(A) B B4 A/BY (&) [(B-A/C)
July 1, 2012 § - 3 9,247,801 $ 9,247,801 0.0% ¥ 64,129,466 14.40%%
July 1, 2013 § - $ 9,930,640 $ 9,930,640 0.0% % 65,789,331 15.10%
July 1, 2014 § - $ 12,103,351 $ 12,103,351 0.0% $ 107,159,237 11.30°%
July 1, 2015 % - $ 12,586,938 ¥ 12,586,938 0.0% § 107,159,237 11.30%
July 1, 2016 $ - ¥ 18,596,008 $ 18,596,008 0.0% $ 107,866,360 17.20%

Note {1}: The District's OPEB accuarial valuation used the projected unit aedit cost method to cstimate the actuatial acorued liability
forthe 7/1/13 and 7/1/13 valuations and the entty age normal (level dollat} actuarial eost method to estimate the actuarial acctued
liahility for the 7/1/15 valuation.

Note (2): ‘The District's wvered payroll for the 7/1/13 and 7/1/ 14 valuations induded payeoll of adive partidpating mem bers ancd

for the 7/1/15 valuation induded the annual payroll of all avered members.

" scheduls of the District's Proportionate Share
B of the Net Pension Liability -
) Fiorida Retirement System Pension Plan (1)

i 2006 2005 2014 2013
District's proportion of the FRS net g ‘
pension liability

District's proportion share of the FRS o - o C . 3 E

. net pension liability o 'S 71,699,838 1 § 37,811,446 1 $ 18,387,792 $ 51,368,573 .

),283058872% 0.292741153%  0.301366557% 0,208403787%

District's covered-employee payroll (2) | $123,528,778  $114,630,462  $113,783,755  $114,789,889
‘District's proportion share of the FRS net o e o
- pension liability as a percentage ofits L 58.04%  3298% 16.16% A4.75%

* covered-employee payroll
FRS Plan fiduciary net positionasa L S S
percentage of the total pension liability S _sz},_g_s%_ 92.00%:! ~ 96.09%: 88.54%.

Motes: (1) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determmed as ofJune 30
(?) Covered-employee payroll includes definad beneflt plan actives, mvestment plan members, and members in DRCP.
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Schedule of Drstrlct Contrlbutmns -
_ Florida Retirament System Penslon Plan (1)

o _ ) o 007 2016 2015 2014
Contractually required FRS contribution S 6898970 $ 6924790 $ 7,137,278 § 6,601,206
FRS contributions in relation to the ' : :

(6,898970) S (6,924,790): & (7,137,278) §  (6,601,206)

>

contractually required contribution -

FRS contribution deficiency (excess) ‘8 -5 -5 -8 -
District's covered-employee payroll (2) . $ 120728089 | § 123528778 § 114639462 $ 113,783,755
FRS contributions as a percentage of o : o )
i covered-employee payroll ~ 571% . 561% . 6.23% 5.80%

Notes: (1) The amounts presented foreach flscal yearwere determlned as oflune 30 )
~ {2) Covered employee payroll includes defined benefit plan actives, investment plan members, and members in DROP.
_ Sthedule of the District's Proportionate Share
] of NetPension Liability~
Health Insurance Subsidv Pension Plan (1)

2006 2005 | 2014 2013

District's proportion of the HISpet. L o ) o
pension liability o | 0.307840722% 0.377837200% 0.382950949% 0.383693682%
District's proportion share of the HIS o e o ) o )
net pension liability ©'§ 25366688 | $ 38533451 $ 35,806,848 ' $ 33,405,580
‘District's covered- employee payroll (2) 16123528778 $114,639,462 . §113,783,755 $114,789,880 -
‘District's proportion share of the HIS net 7 T S o
pension liability as a percentage of its =~ o o - 37.54% 33.61%: 3L47% 29.10%:
covered-employee payroll - : ‘ : '
-HIS Plan fiduciary net positionasa B o S : o N ; )
percentage of the total pension liability L ”77”0.7977%; _050%; 0.99% 1.78%

Notes (1) The amou nis presented for each flscal year were determlned as of June 30
{2) Covered emloyee-payroll inciudes defined benefit plan actives, investment plan members, and members in DROP.

' Schedule of Drstrrct Contributions -
Health lnsurance Subsidy| Penslon Plan (1)

o T ame ams 201
Contractually required HIS contribution % o392 5 2,039,187 % 1,444,329 - § 1,311,861 °
HIS contributions in relation to the ‘ ‘ -

contractuaily required contribution S (2,003,926} §  (2,039,187) § {1,444,329): §  (1,311,861):
HIS contribution deficiency (excess) S -8 -5 - 8 :
-District's covered-employee payroil (2) 4 1007280891 % 123,528,778 { $ 114,639,462 1 $ 113,783,755

HIS contributions as a percentage of R N : S . '
" covered-employee payroll o ! L66% : 165% 1.26% 1.15%

Notes (1) The amounts presented for each ﬂscal year were determlned as ofJune 30, )
_{2) Covered-employee payroll mcludes defined benefit plan actives, investment plan members, and members in DROP.
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BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Board follows ptocedures established by State statutes and State Board of Education (SBE)

rules in establishing budget balances for governmental funds as described below:

>

¥

>

Budgets ate prepared, public heatings are held, and original budgets are adopted annually
for all governmental fund types in accordance with procedures and time intervals presctibed
by law and SBE rules.

Appropriations ate controlled at the object level (e.g., salaries, purchased services, and capital
outlay) within each activity (e.g., instruction, student transportation setvices, and school
administration) and may be amended by tesolution at any Board meeting prior to the due
date for the annual financial report.

Budgets are prepatred using the same modified accrual basis as is used to account for
governmental funds.

Budgetaty information is integrated into the accounting system, and, to facilitate budget
contol, budget balances are encumbeted when purchase orders ate issued. Apptopriations
lapse at fiscal yeat-end, and encumbtances outstanding are honored from the subsequent
fiscal yeat's appropriations.

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS —~ OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT
BENETITS PLAN

The July 1, 2016 actuarial accrued liability (AAL) of $18,596,008 was higher than the July 1, 2014
AAL of $12,103,351 as a tesult of the following changes since the prior valuation:

>

>

The annual per capital claims costs have been updated to reflect current age-adjusted
premiums and updated manual rates.

The premium rates have been updated to use the rates cffective for 2017, which remained
relatively flat compared to expected premiums.

Health cate inflation rates have been updated to reflect recent healthcare trend rate surveys,
blended with the lonp-term tates from the Getzen model published by the Society of
Actuaries.

The actuarial cost method was changed from Entry Age Normal Level Dollat to Entty Age
Notmal Level Petcentage of Pay which will be the requited funding method under the new
GASB standards.

The mottality rates have been updated to use projected mortality imptrovements to the new
valuation date.
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SCHEDULE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY AND SCHEDULE OF
CONTRIBUTIONS - FLLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN

Changes of Benefit Terms. No changes in benefit tetts.

Changes of Assumptions. The long-term expected rate of return was decreased from 7.65 percent to
7.6 petcent, and the active member mortality assumption was updated.

SCHEDULE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY AND SCHEDULE OF
CONTRIBUTIONS — HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PENSION PLAN

Changes of Benefit Terms. No changes in benefit tetms.

Changes of Assumptions. The municipal bond rate used to determine total pension liability was
decreased from 3.8 percent to 2.85 petcent.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
June 30, 2017
UAALasa
Aciuarial Accrued Ligbility Percent
Actuarial Actuarial Value {AAL) Projected Unit Covered of Covered
Valuation of Assets Credit Unfunded AAL (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b} (b-2) (a/b) {c) [(b-a)c]
Joly 1, 2012 5 - 3 9,247,801  $ 9,247,801 00% ¢ 64,129,466 14.40%
Tuly 1, 2013 [ . 3 9930,640  § 2,930,640 0g%  § 65,789,331 15.10%
Tty 1, 2014 [ - H 12103351 § 12,103,351 : 0% ¥ 107,159,237 11.20%
July 1, 2015 3 . $ 12586938  § 12,586,938 0% § 107,159,237 11.30%
Tuly 1, 2016 § - L 18596008 § 18,596,008 0o%  § 107,866,360 17.20%

Note {Ly: 'The District's OPED actuarial vahiation used the projected] nnit credit cost method to estimate e actuatial accrued liability for the 7/1/13 and 7/1/13 valuations and the entry age nomal (level dollag)
actuadal cost method ta estimate the acmarial accrued Bability for the 7/1/15 valuadon,

Nok {2): The Disteicr's covered payroll for the 7/1/13 and 7/1/14 vatoadons included payroll of active participating members and for the 7/1/15 valuation included the anaval payrof of all covered members.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

1. BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Board follows procedures established by State statutes and State Board of Education {SBE) rules in establishing budget balances for
governmentai funds as described below:

Budgets are prepared, public hearings are held, and original budgets are adopted annually for all governmental fund types in
accordance with procedures and time intervals prescribed by law and SBE rules.

Appropriatians are controlled at the object level (e.g., salaries, purchased services, and capital outlay) within each activity
{e.g., instruction, student transportation services, and school administration) and may be amended by resolution at any Board
meeting prior to the due date for the annual financial report.

Budgets are prepared using the same modified accrual basis as is used to account for governmental funds.

Budgetary information is integrated into the accounting system, and, to facilitate budget control, budget balances are
encumbered when purchase orders are issued. Appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end, and encumbrances outstanding
are honored from the subsequent fiscal year's appropriations.

2. SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS — OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The July 1, 2016 actuarial accrued liability {AAL) of $18,596,008 was higher than the July 1, 2014 AAL of $12,103,351 as a result of the following changes since
the prior valuation:

The annual per capital claims costs have been updated to reflect current age-adjusted premiums and updated manual rates.
The premium rates have been updated to use the rates effective for 2017, which remained relatively flat compared to expected premiums.

Health care inflation rates have been updated to reflect recent healthcare trend raie surveys, blended with the long-term rates  from the
Getzen model published by the Society of Actuaries.

The actuarial cost method was changed from Entry Age Normal Level Dollar to Entry Age Normal Level Percentage of Pay which will be
the required funding method under the new GASB standards.

The mortality rates have been updated to use projected mortality improvements to the new valuation date.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2617
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Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Account Actual Final Budget -
Number Original Final Awmounts Positive (Nepative)

REVENUES

Federal Direct 3100 500,000.00 500,000.00 497,223.73 (2,776.27)

Federal Through State and Local 3200 $50,000.00 990,132.82 1,216,526.11 226,393.29

State Scurces 3300 138,028,555.11 144,123,381.66 144,133,897.50 10,515.84

Local Sources:

Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3411, 3421,

Operational Purposes 3423 49,440,283.03 49,440,283.03 49,429,764.34 (10,518,1%)
Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3412, 3421,

Debt Service : 3423 0,00 0.00
Propenty Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3413, 3421,

Capital Projects 3423 0.00 .00
Local Sales Taxes 3418, 3419 0.00 0.00
Charges for Service - Food Service 345X 0.00 0.00
Impact Fees 3496 0.00 .00
Other Local Revenue 2.351,907.08 4,469,747.57 4,580,394.05 110,646,48
Total Local Sources 3400 51,792,190,11 53,910,030.60 54,010,158.89 100,128.29

Total Revenues 191,170,745,22 199,523,545,08 199,857.806.23 334,261.15

EXPENDITURES

Current;
nstruction 5000 132,048,430.05 131,900,005.65 124,551,316.17 7,34%,689.48
Student Support Services 6100 5,905,570.22 7,158,942.88 6,842,720.26 316,222.62
Insirctional Media Services 6200 2,187,215.33 2,117,293.71 1,985,542.49 231,751.22
Instrrction and Cutriculum Development Services 4300 3,377,054.51 3,640,490.17 3,514,570.35 125,919.82
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 2,058,560.70 2,698,909.22 2,155,591.47 543,317.75
Instruction-Related Technology 6300 5,076,973.55 5,815,921.39 5,289,944.95 525,976.94
Board 7100 698,906.44 774,872.25 737,216.33 37,65592
General Adminigtration 7200 709,837.13 747,339.94 740,225.58 7,114.36
School Adminis(ration 7300 13,073,477.37 14,175,398.20 13,902,426.74 270,971.46
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410 24,837.12 49,118,04 4,119,62 44,998,42
Fiscal Services 7500 1,173,093.58 1,184,354.43 1,145,919.07 38,435.36
Food Services 7600 0.00 0.00
Central Services 7700 2,804,192.46 2,542,756.43 2,352,321,80 190,434.63
Student Transpottation Services 7800 12,056,234.34 11,996,383.76 11,832,257.53 164,126.23
Operation of Plant 7900 13,183,751.0¢ 13,260,991.17 13,150,563.16 110,428.01
Mai e of Plant 8100 3,869,396.23 3,040,478.97 3,637,337.52 303,141,435
Administrative Techaology Services 8200 2,241,504.11 2,072,390.96 2,028,637.74 43,753.22
Commymity Services 9100 918,342.30 2,042,537.22 1,809,827.40 232,700.82

Debt Service: (Functlon 3200)

Redemption of Principal 710 0.00 0.00
Tnderest 720 0.00 0.00
Due and Fees 730 .00 0,00
Miscellancous 790 0.00 0.00

Capital Cutlay:

Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420 28,675.67 28,675.67 0.00
Other Capital Qutlay 9300 980,673.53 680,673.53 0.00

Total Expenditures 202,408,177.93 207,225,534.09 196,689,887.38 10,535,646.71

Exeess (Deficl ) of Revenues Over (Under) Expendlitures (11,237,432.71) (7,701,989.01} 3,167,918.85 10,869,907.86

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

I of Bonds 710 0.00 0.00
Premium on Sale of Bonds 3791 0.00 0,00
Discount on Sale of Bonds 851 0.00 0.00

Proceeds of Lease-Purchase Agr 1t 3750 0.00 0.00
Premiuin on Lease-Purchase Ag I 3793 0.00 0,00
Discouni on Lease-Purchase Agr 893 0.00 0.00

Loans 3720 0.00 0.00

Sale of Capital Asscts 3730 0.00 0.00

Loss Recoveries 3740 0.00 33,328.22 33,623.72 295.50

Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760 0.00 0.00

Face Value of Refunding Bonds 3715 0.00 0.00
Premium on Refunding Bonds 3792 0.00 0.00
Discount on Refunding Bonds 892 0.00 C.00

Refunding Lease-Purchase Ag 3755 0.00 .00
Preamiuin on Refinding Lease-Purchase Apreements 3794 .00 6.00
Discount on Refinding Lease-Purchase Agresments 894 0.00 0.00

Payments to Refunding Escrow Agent (Function 9259) 760 300 0.00

Transfers En 3600 4,712,3569.00 5,302,564.57 3,302,564.57 0.00

Transfers Oul 9700 (323,600.56} (3,319,025.59) {3,319,025.59) 0.00

Total Other Financing Sourees (Uses) 4,388,762.44 2,016,867.20 2,017,162.70 295,50

SPECIAL ITEMS

000 0.00

EXTRACRDINARY ITEMS _

0.00 0.00

Net Change in Fund Balances {6,848,670.27) {5,685,121.81) 5,185,081.55 10,870,203.36

Fund Balances, Iily 1, 2016 2800 22,961,634.50 22,961,634.50 22,961,634.50 0.00

Adj its to Fund Bal 2891 0.00 0.00

TFund Balances, June 30, 2017 2700 16,112,964.23 17,276,512,69 28,146,716,05 10,870,203.36
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